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          1  PARKS AND RECREATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good Morning,

          3  welcome to the Parks and Recreation Committee, I am

          4  Chair Joe Addabbo.  To my left, is Council Member

          5  David Yassky, who Chairs the Waterfronts Committee.

          6                 Today, we will actually be having two

          7  separate parts of this Committee hearing.  The first

          8  part, a very brief testimony given on, Adopt- A-

          9  Park, which we will be voting on this historic piece

         10  of legislation.

         11                 Adopt- A- Park, the first of its kind

         12  allows any individual, partnership, corporation, to

         13  contribute; either make a monetary contribution or a

         14  working contribution to a specific park of their

         15  choosing.  It sets up a structure that currently

         16  does not exist, but allows, again, residents

         17  throughout the city to help out our parks.  Again,

         18  one of the most precious commodities that we have in

         19  our City and to protect them during these tough

         20  financial times.  That would be Adopt- A- Park,

         21  which we will be voting on, as soon as we have

         22  quorum of the Park Committee Members.

         23                 The second part is, the Wetlands

         24  issue, and how we can better off, identify these

         25  wetlands and, how can we protect them better off,
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          2  through the Department of Parks and Recreation. So,

          3  we will be hearing testimony on both.

          4                 At this point, I would like to

          5  introduce, members who are here.  Again, to my left,

          6  Council Member David Yassky, Chair of the

          7  Waterfronts Committee, and Council Member Dennis

          8  Gallagher, member of both Committees?  A ember of

          9  Parks, minimally, member of Parks.

         10                 At this point, I would like to call

         11  up two witness to give testimony regarding the,

         12  Adopt- a- Park.

         13                 The first one, being, Deputy

         14  Commissioner Robert Garafola, from the Department of

         15  Parks and Recreation, Division of Management and

         16  Budget.  Commissioner, good to see you again.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:  Hi,

         18  Chairman Addabbo, how are you today?  Good seeing

         19  you.  Councilman Gallagher, how are you?  And,

         20  Councilman Yassky, good seeing you again.

         21                 I just want to, on behalf of

         22  Commissioner Adrian Benepe, Betsy Smith, is also

         23  here with me today, she is our Chief of Marketing

         24  and Special Events.  She was with us at the last

         25  hearing as well.
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          2                 I just want to take this opportunity

          3  to thank the Council, and Chairman Addabbo, in

          4  particular, for crafting this bill, which we think

          5  will think encourage community involvement, and

          6  partnership, and financial support for the Parks

          7  Department. I think we will help the Parks

          8  Department.

          9                 Parks has a successful tradition of

         10  nurturing Community support, and Community

         11  involvement, encouraging direct financial giving to

         12  the Parks Department.  It is the hope of, both the

         13  Council and the agency, that Intro. 399 will expand

         14  this support, and help the Parks Department in the

         15  future.

         16                 We testified last month, in an

         17  earlier version of this bill, and want to recognize

         18  the hard work of Chairman Addabbo, and his staff for

         19  their assistance, in order to make this bill

         20  possible.   And amending it, and make the proposal

         21  better to suit the needs and practices of the

         22  Department.  We think it is a good product now.  In

         23  particular, the new language regarding the term and

         24  structure of the sponsorship agreements, will

         25  provide the flexibility needed, and to attract a
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          2  wider variety of potential partners, and leverage

          3  private support in the community.  Whether, by

          4  encouraging volunteerism, or by forging new

          5  partnerships with neighbors and City groups, Mayor

          6  Bloomberg and his Administration, is committed to

          7  working with all New Yorkers to improve our parks. We

          8  think this bill will help us, in terms of

          9  encouraging support, involvement, both on a

         10  volunteer basis, and also in terms of financial

         11  support to help the Parks Department. I know, in

         12  terms of these financial times, when all money is

         13  necessary, we think, this is the way the Community

         14  can help, and support us, and really make a

         15  difference.                                       As

         16  we implement this bill, we welcome the assistance of

         17  the City Council, and the Parks Committee in

         18  particular, in building a new public and private

         19  partnerships.  So we want to thank you, Chairman

         20  Addabbo and the Council.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Commissioner,

         22  thank you very much, and it is true, Intro. 399- A,

         23  the Adopt- A- Park legislation has gone and evolved

         24  through many changes, and all along the way your

         25  department, the Department of Parks and Recreation,
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          2  and your team, and the Mayor's Administration, has

          3  been very helpful.

          4                 I would, also, like to thank my

          5  Committee members and my staff for working hard on

          6  it.  But, it is proof positive that when we work

          7  together, great things can happen, so, I do

          8  appreciate your help as well.  I look forward to

          9  success for Adopt A- Park.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:  Thank

         11  you, very much. Thank you for your support.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any questions

         13  from my colleagues at all?  Commissioner, thank you,

         14  very much.  Thank you for your time.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLA:  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Next individual

         18  to give testimony, Allison Farina from New Yorkers

         19  for Parks.  Good morning, Ms. Farina, welcome.

         20                 MS. FARINA:  Good morning.  My name

         21  is Allison Farina, I am the Director of the

         22  Government and Community Affairs at New Yorkers for

         23  Parks, a City- wide Advocacy Organization, committed

         24  to insuring that the public receives well designed

         25  programmed and managed parks in every neighborhood.
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          2                 We fully support the Adopt- A- Park

          3  legislation, because its focus is to assist

          4  neighborhood parks across the City. The City's

          5  neighborhood parks are the front and backyards for

          6  millions of New Yorkers, and just like anyone's

          7  home, they require adequate investment, if they are

          8  to be maintained and flourish. Traditionally, these

          9  parks have relied on public funds for support, and

         10  unfortunately, divestments in our park systems, both

         11  in good and bad times, has resulted in parks with

         12  closed bathrooms, broken water fountains, and dirt,

         13  rather than green ball fields.

         14                 This legislation is an excellent

         15  first step to reinvest in our neighborhood parks by

         16  opening the way for private funding.  Of course, we

         17  note and appreciate that this legislature clearly

         18  refutes any attempt to rename a park.  This is

         19  beneficial, since over commercialization can detract

         20  from the park experience for park users.

         21                 We, also, fully support the idea that

         22  this money is additional to annual appropriations,

         23  and that it will stay with the Department of Parks

         24  and Recreation, instead of going to the general

         25  fund.
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          2                 Finally, we are great full to know

          3  that the Parks Committee will have oversight over

          4  this program, thus, creating open and transparent

          5  accountability process for the public.

          6                 The Adopt- A- Park initiative will

          7  help ensure that all New Yorkers have access to the

          8  quality parks and recreation services that they

          9  deserve.

         10                 Thank you, and we fully support this.

         11    Thanks so much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ms. Farina,

         13  thank you very much.  New Yorkers for Parks have

         14  been very helpful, and I appreciate their help

         15  throughout the efforts for our parks.

         16                 Any questions for New Yorkers for

         17  Parks or Ms. Farina, at this point?

         18                 Thank you, very much.

         19                 MS. FARINA:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ladies and

         21  gentlemen, we will be voting on Adopt- A- Park

         22  today, as soon as we do get a quorum of Committee

         23  members for the Parks and Recreation.

         24                 I am, also, very happy to say, that

         25  the Adopt- A- Park Intro. 399- A, has been supported
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          2  by every City Council member, that is 51 supporters

          3  and sponsors of this bill, including Public

          4  Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum, as well.  As of yesterday,

          5  we do have the support of the Mayor's

          6  Administration, which I am also very happy to

          7  announce.

          8                 Like I said, we will revisit this

          9  issue, as soon as we get a quorum, and at this

         10  point, we are going to turn it over to part II of

         11  this hearing, which is, again, involving the

         12  Waterfronts Committee.

         13                 I thank, Council Member David Yassky,

         14  for all his efforts, not only through all the issues

         15  faced with the Waterfronts Committee, but in this

         16  particular important issue, which is the Wetlands

         17  issue, and identifying them for their protection,

         18  and for the efforts, including the Department of

         19  Parks and Recreation.

         20                 We have a very interesting issue

         21  here, one that is, of course, an environmental issue

         22  that is very important, and should be important,

         23  but, yet, not many of our residents do not realize

         24  how important it is.  I do, my district is

         25  surrounded by water, and I have a lot of wetlands in
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          2  the area, and we have seen them erode over the

          3  years.  To an average resident, that may not be of

          4  much interest to them, but it should be, because it

          5  is a very severe environmental issue.

          6                 So, again, the information that is

          7  discussed today, and the path that we choose today,

          8  to take measures to remedy the situation is going to

          9  be very important.  I do appreciate, as I said

         10  again, Council Member David Yassky's efforts to call

         11  this meeting, and it is my pleasure to join him with

         12  this, in this fight to save our Wetlands.

         13                 At this point, I want to turn it over

         14  to Council Member David Yassky.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, Chair

         16  Addabbo, and let me first thank you for holding this

         17  hearing, and joining with the Waterfronts Committee

         18  in doing so.

         19                 The topic of wetlands, as you say, is

         20  one of, really, top rank importance for this City,

         21  given our 578- miles of coastland.  I think when

         22  folks who are not part of the environmental

         23  movement, and hear the term wetlands, they think,

         24  okay, very nice, birds, grass, a place to walk

         25  around, and see some wildlife.  But, I think the
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          2  importance of preserving wetlands to our City, goes

          3  well beyond that, as valuable as those purposes are

          4  on there own, they go well beyond that.

          5                 Preserving wetlands, decreases water

          6  pollution, keeps our water clean, prevents the need

          7  for dredging, with all the environmental

          8  difficulties that involves, protects communities and

          9  businesses from flooding.  So, for many reasons,

         10  wetlands preservation is of top rank importance for

         11  us.

         12                 What we learned, when we in the

         13  Waterfronts Committee, enacted Local Law 20 more

         14  then a year ago, which produced an inventory of

         15  City- owned waterfront properties, when that

         16  inventory was produced, the one thing that we

         17  learned from it, was that, there are many wetland

         18  properties that are actually owned by the City of

         19  New York, but are not within the jurisdiction of the

         20  Parks Department.  This raised a concern in my mind

         21  about whether the City is protecting, and preserving

         22  these wetlands as it should be, because that is the

         23  mission of the Parks Department.  When you have

         24  wetlands that are the hands of other agencies, I

         25  think that we have to wonder whether they are doing
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          2  the job that we know the Parks Department would do.

          3                 So, the purpose of this hearing is to

          4  explore this question, and ask, to my mind, that the

          5  purpose of this hearing is to ask the question,

          6  should these properties be turned over to the Parks

          7  Department, or can they be, I guess, entrusted to

          8  other departments that do not have that same

          9  mission?  They have other important missions, but it

         10  is not the same as the Parks Department.

         11                 So, that is the purpose of today.

         12  Oh, I just want to note that Council Member McMahon,

         13  informed us that he cannot be here today, because he

         14  had a long scheduled charity event in his brother's

         15  honor.  One of his many illustrious brothers, and

         16  so, but, he asked, I know that he is very, very much

         17  committed to wetlands preservation, he asked, that

         18  his reason for not being here be noted.

         19                 Again, I just would like to thank

         20  you, Chair Addabbo, for your tireless leadership on,

         21  not only wetlands, but on the critical issue of

         22  preserving parks and recreational space throughout

         23  the City.  Thank you Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         25  much.  At this point, we are going to be starting to
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          2  call our individuals for testimony.   At this point,

          3  I would like to call Alex Brash, Chief of Urban Park

          4  Services for New York Parks and Recreation.

          5                 MR. BRASH:  Good morning.  Good

          6  morning, Chairman Addabbo, and Chairman Yassky, and

          7  Committee members of the Parks and Waterfront

          8  Committees.  My name is Alexander Brash, and I am

          9  the Chief of the Park and Recreation's Urban Park

         10  Service.  With me today is Bill Tigh (phonetic), who

         11  is the Director of the Natural Resource Group, and

         12  Alison Wenger, Director of Government Relations.

         13                 On behalf of Commissioner Benepe, I

         14  am pleased to be here to discuss protection of City-

         15  owned wetlands.  Parks and Recreation, as you have

         16  pointed out, has long recognized the value and

         17  importance of the City's wetlands and waterfronts.

         18  In fact, the Agency first created the Urban Park

         19  Rangers in 1979, and then the Natural Resource Group

         20  in 1984 to address these very issues.

         21                 The Rangers are the visible uniformed

         22  stewards that patrol the City's parks, including,

         23  and especially its more fragile elements.  The

         24  Natural Resource Group undertakes the research, and

         25  restoration efforts needed to preserve, and
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          2  reconstruct those natural areas within the Agency's

          3  purview.

          4                 Parks has always pursued initiatives

          5  focused on the acquisition, preservation, and

          6  enjoyment of the City's natural areas.  These

          7  efforts have never been stronger than they are

          8  today, and in fact, the current Parks Commissioner,

          9  Adrian Benepe, not only started as a Park Ranger, he

         10  than went on the lead the Natural Resource Group in

         11  the mid- 1980s.

         12                 In addition, the Mayor, himself, has

         13  taken a very active interest in waterfront issues,

         14  and embarked on a major initiative to reclaim the

         15  waterfront for the City's residents.

         16                 Parks:  In Parks we know the wetlands

         17  are particularly important to the health of our

         18  ecosystem and to the City.  They hold sediments,

         19  they serve as nurseries for a great number of plants

         20  and fish, they clean our waters, and they are home

         21  to a variety of bird species.  Given this

         22  importance, Parks is also committed to protecting

         23  the wetlands currently under our jurisdiction, as

         24  well as, always acquiring additional wetland areas

         25  in the City.
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          2                 The City and the Parks Department

          3  have an outstanding track record of preserving

          4  fragile wetlands and the relevant uplands that

          5  protect them.

          6                 Some of the preservation projects

          7  that our Natural Resource Group are currently

          8  working on, include, Marine Park and White Island.

          9  Starting roughly in 2005, Parks will restore a long

         10  stretch of shore line in Marine Park and 90- acre

         11  White Island.  It will be recovered with both, tidal

         12  plants, as well as, upland grasses that should match

         13  the surrounding ecosystem of Jamaica Bay.          Further

         14  east, the restoration of Spring Creek is also

         15  scheduled to begin in 2005, though it is still in

         16  the preliminary phases.  In this area we are

         17  planning a 30- acre restoration, with again, 15

         18  acres of tidal marsh and 15 acres of coastal

         19  uplands.

         20                 We know that ecosystems are never

         21  contained by simply human derived boundaries, such

         22  as, park perimeters, county lines, or other such

         23  political demarcations.  Parks has always worked

         24  with a great number of partners, including

         25  scientists, non profit organizations and other
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          2  agencies, Federal, State and City.

          3                 In order to ensure the long term

          4  integrity of the City's parks and other natural

          5  areas, we have been involved in a number of efforts,

          6  such as, Buffer the Bay, the Harbor Herons, and the

          7  Bronx River Restoration.

          8                 Recently, with the assistance of the

          9  Bronx River Restoration, and the Environmental

         10  Justice Alliance, we have identified, and acquired

         11  various parcels along the Bronx River, including the

         12  Cement Plant and the Art Center.  Partnerships such

         13  as these will help the City realize its goal of a

         14  green corridor with both active and passive

         15  recreational opportunities along the river.

         16                 In addition to these private groups,

         17  we have also worked with other City agencies to

         18  preserve targeted areas of the natural landscape of

         19  the City.

         20                 Since 1995, nearly 1,700 various lots

         21  have been moved over to Parks from DCAS.

         22                 The 1987 Buffer the Bay report

         23  identified a number of parcels, on both the north

         24  and south sides of Jamaica Bay, as open space

         25  opportunities.  With the help of various City
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          2  agencies, all of the major sites identified, have

          3  been acquired or transferred to Parks.

          4                 As a result of DEP's efforts, Spring

          5  Creek, Fresh Creek, and portions of Paedergat Basin,

          6  all on the north side of Jamaica Bay, have been

          7  transferred to Parks.  We recently finished a

          8  restoration of a beautiful oxbow for Sparrow Marsh,

          9  a site that was transferred to Parks by EDC.

         10                 With the support of DEP, Sanitation,

         11  EDC, and DCAS, numerous other sites on the south

         12  side of Jamaica Bay, including Edgemere, Vernam

         13  Bargadoes, Brant Point, and Dubos Point are now

         14  under Park's care.

         15                 As you can see, Parks is committed to

         16  preserving and expanding the wetlands, however, we

         17  also recognize that there are competing needs for a

         18  limited amount of space in the City. Parkland is

         19  only one park of a very complicated equation that is

         20  needed to manage New York City.  We must balance our

         21  priorities for natural areas with City's needs for

         22  additional housing, transportation centers,

         23  infrastructure, and economic development

         24  opportunities.  Often these competing needs are not

         25  mutually exclusive.  Working closely with other City
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          2  agencies we have often been able to accommodate both

          3  economic development initiatives while still

          4  preserving open space.

          5                 For example, recently, adjacent to

          6  Dreier- Offerman Park, EDC and Parks worked together

          7  to accommodate both a commercial development, as

          8  well as park use.  As part of the project, Parks

          9  acquired five acres of waterfront property, and a

         10  newly constructed esplanade.

         11                 Finally, Parks has always been, and

         12  will continue to be concerned about the issues that

         13  confront the fragile natural areas of New York City.

         14    Given the importance of wetlands to New York

         15  City's environment, we are dedicated to restoring

         16  and acquiring as much of the wetlands as possible.

         17                 These efforts are strengthened

         18  through our partnerships with community groups,

         19  environmental organizations, and other City

         20  agencies, and we look forward to their continued

         21  cooperation and support.

         22                 I thank the Council for giving me the

         23  opportunity to discuss the value of the City's

         24  wetlands, and Park's commitment to their

         25  preservation.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Commissioner,

          3  thank you, very much.

          4                 Have you seen an increase, because

          5  you mentioned DEP, you mentioned the Department of

          6  Sanitation, have you seen an increase in the

          7  cooperative efforts with other agencies in

          8  protecting our wetlands?  Do you see, and even in

          9  the future, in continuing that work, do you see,

         10  again, and increase in cooperative effort there?

         11                 MR. BRASH:  There has always been a

         12  very good cooperative air.  I think there has been

         13  an increased cooperative air on several fronts.

         14  Probably, most importantly, I think one of the best

         15  examples has been DEP and Parks working together due

         16  to the Bluebelt, and I think, as more and more

         17  scientists, and professionals become involved in

         18  looking at how Parks can become part of the, as I

         19  call it, ecological pillar in the City's

         20  infrastructure, there has been increased

         21  cooperation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  And as these

         23  properties get transferred over to Parks, which is

         24  pleasing to see, where these will be in good hands,

         25  do you feel that the Department of Parks and
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          2  Recreation has the resources necessary to maintain

          3  or improve upon these lands, or that, you would need

          4  an increase in budget to obviously, keep up with the

          5  land that you are acquiring?

          6                 MR. BRASH:  I am sure Parks is quite

          7  fine at the moment, but those are things outside of

          8  my purview.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You talk about

         10  when you actually acquire land, or the land that you

         11  deal with has environmental issues, bird species was

         12  mentioned.  I know in my district, the Rockaway

         13  beaches, there is a quite endangered species called

         14  the Piping Plover, which over the years has been

         15  sought to be protected.

         16                 Whenever the Parks Department

         17  acquires these lands, or goes into an area, what

         18  factors do they take into consideration in looking

         19  at these environmental issues, possibly these rare

         20  species?

         21                 MR. BRASH:  Maybe, Bill Tigh, who is

         22  the Director of Natural Resources, could speak to

         23  that.  Because, we have a great team of scientists,

         24  ecologists, and engineers, who get involved in the

         25  use of these parcels.
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          2                 MR. TIGH:  Good morning, Mr.

          3  Chairman.

          4                 The first thing, I might say, too, is

          5  we look for over- riding regulatory agencies too, in

          6  the case of your district and the Piping Plovers,

          7  U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service certainly has an

          8  overall interest in the protection of the species.

          9                 So, it is a matter of cooperating,

         10  and finding out what regulations are in place

         11  already, and then looking to see if we would want to

         12  augment them, and how they affect the community, and

         13  our own maintenance and operations procedures.  We

         14  certainly have day- to- day requirements that would

         15  be easy to overlook in regards to habitat, and

         16  plants and animals.  So, it is the direction of my

         17  group, in particular, to be the environmental

         18  watchdogs for, not only the City, but for our own

         19  department.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I will tell

         21  that, I had actually spoke to a local exterminator,

         22  who the Department of Parks and Recreation has

         23  worked with, to protect the Piping Plovers, because

         24  their eggs have been in jeopardy, due to other

         25  birds, or pigeons, what have you, in the area are
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          2  seagulls, actually threatening the Piping Plovers

          3  and their offspring.  They have actually worked with

          4  local exterminators to see what they could put on

          5  top of light poles, what have you, to, I guess,

          6  discourage the seagulls from being there.

          7                 So, again, I know first hand that you

          8  are obviously interested in maintaining the

          9  environmental situation there, as far as the Piping

         10  Clovers.

         11                 MR. TIGH:  Commissioner Murphy was

         12  very helpful with that, indeed, and as you may know

         13  the Piping Plover is probably one of the most

         14  successful and productive colonies on the east

         15  coast.         CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do you have any

         16  question?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, thank you,

         18  very much. You are intriguing me; maybe we could

         19  start a Piping Plover colony in Brooklyn.

         20                 MR. BRASH:  Get some attention.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I just have few

         22  questions. Just a couple of general questions for

         23  the framework.  Do you know how many acres of

         24  wetland property are within the jurisdiction of the

         25  Parks Department?  Do you have a ballpark?
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          2                 MR. BRASH:  I am not sure exactly.

          3  We have, depending on various estimates; we have

          4  roughly 7 to 9 thousand acres that we consider

          5  natural areas.  Obviously, a lot of those are

          6  upland, I do not have an exact figure, we can find

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you know what

          9  is the amount of acreage that is City- owned, but

         10  not within your jurisdiction of wetlands?

         11                 MR. BRASH:  No, not exactly, we can

         12  look into that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, thank you.

         14

         15                 MR. BRASH:  We are settling that now,

         16  and we can get back to you with that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, thank you,

         18  I would appreciate it. There are a few specific

         19  properties that I would like to talk to you about.

         20  I guess they fall into two categories, and there are

         21  many properties that we could talk about, but I am

         22  just going to single out a few in each of two

         23  categories, that I think are somewhat emblematic.

         24  The two categories are things where, as best as I

         25  can tell, there is not a real compelling alternate
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          2  use, and I do not know why it would not go into

          3  Parks Department jurisdiction.

          4                 Then the second category of things,

          5  are where there really are some very difficult

          6  questions.  But, I will give you a few, of what I

          7  think are the easier questions first, and tell me if

          8  I am correct.

          9                 Saw Mill Creek, to take one example,

         10  is, I have a whole bunch of detail about it.  It is,

         11  there are 111- acres of wetlands, supports wading

         12  birds, this is in Staten Island, of course.  That is

         13  one.

         14                 In Brooklyn, Paerdegat Basin, which

         15  is now held by DCAS, I guess at the southwest edge,

         16  there are wetlands properties there, and then, I

         17  guess also back to Staten Island.  And then, the

         18  northeastern area, of Old Place Creek, which I guess

         19  is held by both DCAS, and the Department of Small

         20  Business Services, this is near the Arthur Kill.

         21                 Are you familiar with those

         22  particular properties? Am I correct that those are

         23  areas where there are wetlands, where there are real

         24  preservation possibilities.  I mean, there would be

         25  some significant benefits to preserving them as
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          2  wetlands, and that those are not in the Parks

          3  Department now.  My question is, should they be?

          4                 MR. BRASH:  Yes, I am familiar with

          5  them, and two of them at least, are beautiful salt

          6  marshes, both Old Place Creek and Saw Mill Creek in

          7  Staten Island.  With respect to Saw Mill Creek, we

          8  are actually, already working with EDC on this site.

          9    There are some minor outstanding issues that need

         10  to be resolved. We think they will be shortly, and

         11  we are looking to clear the way for Parks to acquire

         12  that.

         13                 With respect to Old Place Creek, we

         14  have heard that there may be a plan to twin,

         15  Goethels Bridge, and we are hopeful that maybe the

         16  property could be transferred to Parks with the

         17  understanding that, if there is work needed on the

         18  bridge in the future, that the necessary easements

         19  would be provided.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That is

         21  intriguing, just on that one.  Are there, is there a

         22  precedent for that transparks, that, where, property

         23  is in designated parkland, but with easements, but

         24  where there is a particular future project that you

         25  know may be taking place?  That strikes me as a good
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          2  idea.

          3                 MR. BRASH:  I do not personally know

          4  if that would be a precedent or not, but we are

          5  always interested to preserve wetlands in as

          6  creative a way as possible.  I am sure that is

          7  something that could be worked out by Councils.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  That strikes me

          9  as a very good idea.

         10                 MR. BRASH:  Then, finally, you going

         11  back to Paerdegat Basin, which is part of Buffer the

         12  Bay, and which in large part was moved over as

         13  upland, attached to one of the fingers on Buffer the

         14  Bay.  What is left is really an 8- acre parcel, that

         15  is surrounded by the piece that was already

         16  transferred to Parks. We would be very pleased if

         17  this property could be transferred to Parks, and we

         18  are talking to DCAS, at the moment, about it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  The transfers

         20  that you alluded to in your opening statement,

         21  those, if I am correct, has any wetland property

         22  been transferred to Parks, in the last year- and- a

         23  half, since January 2002?

         24                 MR. BRASH:  I do not know exactly,

         25  there certainly have been lots of, there have
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          2  certainly been parcels that have been transferred.

          3  I am not sure when the date of the first piece of

          4  paper versus when the final signature was landed.

          5  But, things like North Brothers Island, and several

          6  others have come over within the past year or two.

          7  I do not know, exactly, when it was started or when

          8  it ended.  But the process has been continuing at

          9  all times.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASKKY:  Okay, this is my

         11  last question, or I guess, two- part question.

         12  Again, these are properties that I recognize are

         13  more complicated than the ones we just discussed.  I

         14  am still curious to hear the Parks Department

         15  perspective on them.

         16                 One is Arlington Marsh, next to

         17  Howland Hook Container Port, which is, I believe, is

         18  a very, very significant wetlands area.  Although, I

         19  understand that there are competing commercial

         20  development questions, there.

         21                 The second is, there are, I guess,

         22  some 400- acres of habitat areas within the Arverne

         23  Urban Renewal area, that is currently within the

         24  jurisdiction of HPD.  What can you tell me about the

         25  future of those two parcels?
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          2                 MR. BRASH:  With respect to Arlington

          3  Marsh, we are very interested in the site as a link

          4  to Mariners Marsh, but I, as you have pointed out, I

          5  believe it is being considered as potential

          6  expansion for Howland Hook.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Does the

          8  administration have a position yet, on what is the

          9  appropriate future of Arlington Marsh?

         10                 MR. BRASH:  No, not that I know of.

         11                 Then, with respect to Arverne, we

         12  have actually, the Parks Department has been working

         13  very closely with HPD on Arverne. The plan which

         14  will be coming out shortly, as well as in EIS,

         15  includes a large tract of park in the center of the

         16  project, which directly backs up as adjacent to, and

         17  thus buffering, if you will, the Piping Plover

         18  colony.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  On Arlington

         20  Marsh, Howland Hook is in the middle, unless I am

         21  mistaken, of a significant expansion program right

         22  now, right?  Don't they have a major capital project

         23  for expanding there port.

         24                 MR. BRASH:  Yea, I am not intimately

         25  familiar with what Port Authority is doing.

                                                            31

          1  PARKS AND RECREATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  Obviously, they are doing lots of stuff at all

          3  times.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  There are I

          5  believe, and I know you are not, I know you are the

          6  Parks Department, and it is not, and the management

          7  of the container port there, is not your

          8  responsibility.  But it is, I think, there are also

          9  significant expansion opportunities on that formal

         10  Protector and Gamble sight next door.  I know it

         11  seemed that way when we walked around there. I guess

         12  my question is, no question Howland Hook is a

         13  valuable facility for the City, it generates jobs,

         14  it brings in containers that otherwise would have to

         15  be trucked, and so forth.  It is valuable, but it is

         16  my take, at least, that their expansion needs can be

         17  met without having to go into Arlington Marsh.  Is

         18  that incorrect?

         19                 MR. BRASH:  I really would not know,

         20  obviously the Parks Department always is interested

         21  in preserving marsh particularly since it is

         22  adjacent to other park property.  On the other hand,

         23  there are bigger needs of the City, and it would

         24  take a larger group to look at it, which I believe

         25  is underway.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  It is underway?

          3  Is there a timetable for, kind of making a decision

          4  on the future of Arlington Marsh?

          5                 MR. BRASH:  That, I do not know, the

          6  City is, there is a working group that has been put

          7  together, between EDC, DCAS, City planning, and so

          8  forth, to put together a plan for northwest Staten

          9  Island

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I have been told

         11  that the Sanitation Department has some interest in

         12  Arlington Marsh for its purposes.  Is that something

         13  that is correct?

         14                 MR. BRASH:  I read that in the

         15  newspaper, but since we do not currently hold

         16  possession of Mariners Marsh, I would not know what

         17  other people are doing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I just still

         19  want to go on record before, while the Parks

         20  Department is here.  It is certainly my position

         21  that Arlington Marsh, and these parts of the Arverne

         22  Urban Renewal Area, as well, are wetlands of such

         23  significance, that they should be preserved.  I

         24  believe that they should be within the jurisdiction

         25  of the Parks Department.
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          2                 I just want to ask one question.  I

          3  do not want to ask you to, well, if the goal of the

          4  Administration were with respect to a bigger piece

          5  of property, were to preserve it as a wetland,

          6  should it be within the jurisdiction of the Parks

          7  Department?

          8                 MR. BRASH:  I believe that is our

          9  mission, that is our goal, and that is our

         10  interests, and I am sure if that was the will of the

         11  people of New York City, we would be happy to take

         12  that responsibility.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, thank you,

         14  very much, thank you Mr. Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

         16  Council Member, Yassky.

         17                 Just to expand on that a little bit,

         18  it is interesting, Arverne is just right outside my

         19  district, but obviously, what happens there is going

         20  to affect the residents of my district, and it

         21  brings up an interesting point.  When looking at a

         22  situation like Arverne, and there is plenty

         23  throughout the City, when you have a situation where

         24  you balance the need for a park, possibly a

         25  recreational park, and the environmental issues to
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          2  preserve it as such, what factors do you use in

          3  determining should a park be turned from a wetland,

          4  not a wetland, but possibly a barren piece of land,

          5  into a recreational park, or as opposed to

          6  preserving it as a wetland or as an environmental

          7  piece.  What factors are used?

          8                 MR. BRASH:  Within, let us say, the

          9  Parks Department, our natural resource group, as

         10  well as, often, with help from various academic

         11  institutions, in and around the City, we work with

         12  biologists, for instance from Fordham University, up

         13  at Barnard, Staten Island College, a whole host of

         14  different areas. We certainly look at ecological

         15  factors, in dealing with things as specific as the

         16  grasses in the salt marshes, or the Piping plovers,

         17  and so forth.

         18                 The larger question I think that you

         19  are asking is really handled, obviously, at several

         20  levels, well away from, let us say, my immediate

         21  position, and that is, obviously, usually played

         22  out, there a series of processes, ranging from,

         23  ULURP, to EIS, to Community Board, to hearings such

         24  as this, that I think it is in various, obviously,

         25  agencies.  The executive side of the Council all
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          2  weigh in, then in the long run what results is

          3  presumably the will of the people.  But, certainly,

          4  all major actions, such as this, are aired quite

          5  well in the public, and that is how they play out.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So it is safe to

          7  say that the Department works with, like you said,

          8  biologists, and other individuals, possibly, even

          9  other agencies, but has a criteria that they look at

         10  to determine whether a certain piece of property

         11  could be used for recreational, or should be

         12  maintained as an environmental area.

         13                 MR. BRASH:  Absolutely, I mean in

         14  fact, that the Department, Bill, for instance sits

         15  as part of the HEP Group, which, I think you will

         16  hear of more about.  There are various other

         17  environmental groups that get together in

         18  collaboratives.  We also work very closely with

         19  Federal Agencies, New York State Departments of

         20  Environmental Conservation, and others in examining

         21  the ecological fabric of any piece of property.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Lastly, for

         23  myself, what is the total amount of acreage that the

         24  Parks Department has within its jurisdiction, that

         25  is wetland area?  Do you know?
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          2                 MR. BRASH:  We have to get back to

          3  you on that, as I said before, out of our total

          4  acreage, we believe it is roughly, depending on how

          5  one counts it, 7 to 9 thousandacres, that are

          6  natural areas.  But, the exact number on wetlands,

          7  we will have to get back, because, we have to divide

          8  out both salt and fresh.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, if you

         10  can, I would greatly appreciate it.

         11                 Any other questions for my

         12  colleagues?

         13                 We have been joined by Council

         14  Member, Robert Jackson and Council Member, Serrano.

         15  Thank you, very much, for being here.

         16                 Any questions for the Department of

         17  Parks and Recreation at this point?

         18                 Chief, and to the whole Department of

         19  Parks and Recreation team, thank you, very much, for

         20  being here.

         21                 MR. BRASH:  Thank you, very much, and

         22  thank you, particularly, for your interest in the

         23  issue.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is a great

         25  issue.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  The next panel

          3  of witnesses is Peter Blanchard, from the Trust for

          4  Public Land, Carolyn Sommers, from Natural Resources

          5  Defense Council, and David Burg, from Wild Metro.  I

          6  guess the PowerPpoint is from NRDC, if you would

          7  like to go first, that is fine, or whichever order

          8  you would like is fine with us.

          9                 MS. SOMMERS:  Good morning, I am

         10  Carolyn Sommers, from the Natural Resources Defense

         11  Council.  I am project director of the NRDC's Harbor

         12  Bite project.  I wanted to take this opportunity to

         13  thank you all for giving us this opportunity to talk

         14  about these very important sites.

         15                 It is very timely, and I think a very

         16  urgent matter, as you, yourselves have explained.

         17  Probably, within our lifetimes, vacant land, as we

         18  know it now, will cease to exist.  All land will

         19  either be built upon or it will be preserved.  So

         20  the actions that we take today, and in the near

         21  future, to preserve areas like Arlington Marsh, and

         22  the other marshlands, and other natural areas left

         23  in the City, are very important for the quality of

         24  life for future generations of New Yorkers.  And,

         25  for the future of species who dwell within our
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          2  boarders now, and we hope will continue to be able

          3  to dwell within our boarders.

          4                 I am here to present an overview now,

          5  of the work of the habitat work group, to identify

          6  priority acquisitions, to preserve our regional

          7  natural history.  City- owned parcels, the subject

          8  of this hearing are included in that list.

          9                 The Chair of the habitat work group,

         10  Nancy Welch, from the Department of State, could not

         11  be with us, because of budgetary travel

         12  restrictions, so I am actually going to give her

         13  presentation.

         14                 The work group participants, as you

         15  can see, is a very long list made up of our Federal

         16  partners, both States of New York and New Jersey,

         17  local partners, both New York City partners, and

         18  local private non- profit groups, and we hope that

         19  the list continues to grow, and people continue to

         20  stay involved in this very important work, and we

         21  welcome additional members.

         22                 Habitat here in the harbor estuary,

         23  the New York body provides a unique setting,

         24  geologically speaking, and otherwise for New York

         25  City.  The New York, Metropolitan region is actually
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          2  the meeting place of five different plant provinces.

          3

          4                 As if, the New York, Metropolitan

          5  region does not have enough human crossroads, we

          6  have crossroads of wildlife migration, fish, birds,

          7  butterflies, all migrating through our City.  It is

          8  a very complicated junction for these different

          9  species.

         10                 The five provinces include coastal

         11  plains, Piedmont, New England, Appalachian Valley,

         12  and the Appalachian Plateau.  The Hudson Valley, of

         13  which we are an intrical part, also, has one of the

         14  largest assemblages of turtles in the world.  The

         15  assemblage of plants is also within this small area,

         16  the largest in the entire world.

         17                 One of the things that the habitat

         18  work group did, was, they hired the U S Fish and

         19  Wildlife Service to do an in- depth study of the

         20  creatures that live here in the Metropolitan region,

         21  and what they found, surprised them.  We really do

         22  have a very rich and diverse flora and fauna still

         23  living in the very urbanized area.  It was a shock

         24  to them, and their report documents that. That

         25  report set the stage for all of the recommendations,
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          2  and identifications of sites that have come from

          3  that work.  Of course, we do have historic huge

          4  losses of habitat, and that was identified early on,

          5  and it was one of the reasons that it was a surprise

          6  that so much is still remaining.

          7                 These are slides of the harbor

          8  herons, which you have already heard mentioned, and

          9  you will hear more about from Peter Blanchard.

         10                 We have many federally protected

         11  species here, in the harbor.  I will not read the

         12  whole list, I think you can all see it for

         13  yourselves, but I hope you all know that peregrine

         14  falcons are nesting just a few blocks from here.  It

         15  is one of the real urban wildlife success stories.

         16                 Our priority acquisition list was put

         17  together by many people over the last few years.  It

         18  is probably the culmination of at least five years

         19  of work.  These are some of the

         20  criteria that we use to arrive at the sites.  Rare,

         21  endangered, and threatened species, the presence of

         22  those species is, obviously, a huge contributing

         23  factor.  Overall ecological value, in other words,

         24  did the site still support native vegetation, and

         25  was it ecologically intact?  Size is important, a
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          2  very, very large size will often support more native

          3  flora and fauna.  Imminence of development,

          4  obviously, we have to prioritize, we cannot buy

          5  everything at once or save everything at once.  So,

          6  if, something was imminently threatened with

          7  development, we try to give it a higher priority.

          8  Economic considerations, obviously, we all face

          9  economic considerations.

         10                 The work to date has been very

         11  productive, as the Parks Department, recently, just

         12  a few minutes ago, said, we have done an enormous

         13  amount already.  It is really heartening to see them

         14  take the lead on this, and it is also heartening to

         15  see the other City agencies working so closely

         16  together.

         17                 In addition, we are getting funds

         18  from the Federal agencies now, we have received

         19  funding from Port Authority, which has most recently

         20  resulted in a marina being purchased on the Kill Van

         21  Kull, a small area of tidal wetlands incorporated

         22  within that.

         23                 I am going to pop through the

         24  priority ecosystem areas pretty quickly, because I

         25  have with me, experts on those different areas, and
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          2  they will go through them in much more detail. But,

          3  the priority areas are Jamaica Bay, the East

          4  River/Long Island Sound Complex, and Staten Island.

          5                 This is an overview map of the

          6  Jamaica Bay ecosystem, and these are the City- owned

          7  habitat sites that we hope to preserve.  There are

          8  some very important wetlands at the head of Thurston

          9  Basin, you have already mentioned the Arverne

         10  Renewal area and the importance of protecting the

         11  endangered Piping Plovers. And, in Brooklyn there is

         12  some unfinished business at Paerdegat Basin.  Most

         13  of Paerdegat Basin was preserved, a small 8- acre

         14  parcel was reserved out, which fragments the entire

         15  park, and it is really a shame.  If that 8- acre

         16  parcel could be returned, we would have one very

         17  beautiful, integrated park along that Paerdegat

         18  Basin.

         19                 This is a map of the East River- Long

         20  Island Sound Complex.  The sites that we are looking

         21  to preserve here, include a site along Westchester

         22  Creek, a very beautiful tidal wetlands area that

         23  also could support a marina and public access.

         24  Goose Island, which is one of the harbor herons

         25  breeding sites. And, in Queens, the Flushing
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          2  Airport, an abandoned airport has reverted over

          3  many, many years, into a beautiful marsh. There have

          4  been some problems with it, and EDC, I believe, is

          5  restoring it, but, I believe that if the Parks were

          6  to oversee that restoration, I think that success

          7  would be, we would have much more, we think the

          8  success would be better.

          9                 This is a shot of Howland Bay Park,

         10  where Goose Island is integrally connected to.

         11                 This is a map of Staten Island.  The

         12  Staten Island parcels that we are looking to save,

         13  include Saw Mill Creek, already mentioned.  At the

         14  mouth of Old Place Creek, we have the existing

         15  Goethals Bridge already, and really what you are

         16  talking about, if you build a bridge adjacent to it,

         17  are footings for the bridge, which would not

         18  necessarily mean that you could not have a park

         19  there.  So, I think that, that is a point well

         20  taken, and I think we should continue to see that,

         21  that happens.  Also, the bridge is far off in the

         22  future, and people could be having access to that

         23  right now, there is no reason to keep people out of

         24  it.

         25                 Arlington Marsh is a similar
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          2  situation.  Right now, Howland Hook is expanding

          3  into the Port Ivory site, it is reasonable to assume

          4  that they could accommodate their needs on the Port

          5  Ivory site.  The Arlington Marsh is entirely

          6  protected wetlands, and it is unrealistic, really,

          7  to assume that the permits that the City would need,

          8  would even be forthcoming.  So, for the City to hold

          9  back, and not let the community have access, right

         10  now, to that parcel, really, does not make a whole

         11  lot of sense.

         12                 Northern Seaview, I am not too

         13  familiar personally with, but other people will

         14  speak to that issue, and that is another area where

         15  there are very important rare and endangered, it is

         16  a rare and endangered plant community.  A Serpentine

         17  Barrens community, and that is another case where I

         18  think that parcel would be better off in Parks

         19  Department's hands.

         20                 Here are some shots of the Arthur

         21  Kill and Kill Van Kull marshes.   This is northern

         22  Seaview, and one of those shots includes the

         23  Serpentine Barrens.

         24                 I would like now to turn the

         25  presentation over to the folks who will be doing the
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          2  close ups.

          3                 MR. BLANCHARD:  Thank you, very much,

          4  for having us. We are sliding back to an earlier

          5  technology here. Excuse the slide presentation, as

          6  opposed to PowerPoint.

          7                 My name is Peter Blanchard, I am

          8  formerly with the Trust for Public Land, and co-

          9  author of An Islanded Nature, a document that came

         10  out in 2001, and was produced by New York City

         11  Audubon, and the Trust for Public Land.  I am

         12  currently still in the environmental field.  Thank

         13  you, very much, for having us this morning.

         14                 It is a little hard to see that in

         15  detail, but that is the overview of the area that we

         16  studied.  Northwestern Staten Island was originally

         17  the area of the harbor herons, and we expanded that

         18  in 2001 to go all the way down to the Outerbridge

         19  Crossing.

         20                 The next one shows in little better

         21  detail, I think I will just step up for a minute to

         22  point out two sites if you are not familiar with

         23  them, and they have already been mentioned numerous

         24  times.  Arlington Marsh, up on the Northern edge,

         25  here, and something that people, thinking about
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          2  this, and observing it over time, have noticed it is

          3  actually two peninsulas, and two embayments.  And

          4  embayments are enclosed, partly enclosed bodies of

          5  water which increases their environmental potential,

          6  and used particularly by waterfowl.  Then Old Place

          7  Creek, which is number ten here, a meandering creek

          8  area, and we will look at those, both in a little

          9  more detail.  I just want to make sure you knew

         10  where they were.

         11                 Since, 1974, when a longshoreman, who

         12  also happened to be birding enthusiast, came across

         13  an amazing image of a vision of, it was not a

         14  vision, it was a real sighting of a heron heading to

         15  a nesting area on Falls Island carrying nesting

         16  material.  The truly remarkable natural area has

         17  unfolded, and gained recognition in Northwestern

         18  Staten Island.  The area that was celebrated in the

         19  Harbor Herons Report of 1990, which Carolyn Sommers

         20  was the author, and in the later study, I have just

         21  mentioned, An Islanded Nature, which updated and

         22  expanded the original report.  Three islands were

         23  the focus of the initial concern in the report.

         24  They are Shooters Island to the north, just slightly

         25  east of the Arlington Marsh. Pralls Island, that
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          2  elongate, wonderful island in the middle of the

          3  Arthur Kill.  Then just at the very lower bottom of

          4  that slide, Isle of Meadows, very happily since,

          5  really, at the end of our last report, by the end of

          6  that last report, all three sites had achieved

          7  protection, and the islands were protected under the

          8  Parks Departments wing, at least in part.

          9                 So the area, eventually expanded to

         10  23- sites from about 14- or- so, and the 23- sites

         11  comprise 2,558- acres.  To date approximately 850 of

         12  those acres, or 33 percent of the total acreage of

         13  open space, this includes, uplands, and forests, and

         14  marshes, has been protected.  What was discovered

         15  when folks started looking at this area, this shows

         16  the juxtaposition of industry and wildlife, there

         17  are some gulls nesting on the ribs of barges.      I

         18  just missed one slide, lets see if I can get that

         19  one.  This picture is very eloquent in revealing the

         20  proximity of parks to major commerce and industry on

         21  the Arthur Kill.  This is in the Saw Mill Creek

         22  Marsh, which is City Parks Department.  The number

         23  of sites that were covered, of course with herons

         24  and egrets, this is a black crown night heron as a

         25  focus, or a Louisiana heron, soon expanded because
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          2  you realize that the birds were nesting in one area

          3  or feeding in one area, but they were using many

          4  other areas to support their life, and their

          5  existence. Not only were these areas important to

          6  specific birds, which we call umbrella species, but

          7  they are important to a wider range of creatures,

          8  marine, invertebrate, fishes, a whole range of

          9  plants, and animals that are also dependent on these

         10  landscapes.  So it is eloquent that this group of

         11  birds was selected, and they in fact, in protecting

         12  their habitat, protects others habitat.

         13                 This is in Kreischer's Cove, and

         14  shows osprey making a very ingenuous use of a very

         15  tall crane for a nesting platform. Then, of course,

         16  it is not just herons, but it is all the other bird

         17  life that is in there, a marsh wren.

         18                 The fabric of sites expanded since

         19  1990, include areas like, Blazing Star, which is a

         20  very interesting marsh habitat with pile fields,

         21  these are the decaying barges, and remnants of

         22  barges that are important wildlife habitat.

         23                 Other surprises in the process, and

         24  this is what really impressed me most, in a year and

         25  a half of preparing for this study, was the degree
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          2  to which the coastline of Staten Island, in aspects,

          3  was still very evocative of its past, and it still

          4  had ecologic function.  This is true even though

          5  many of these sites were naturally regenerating

          6  after human disturbance, either in this century or

          7  in prior centuries.  But, to be able to walk out

          8  into a marsh in Staten Island, and look out and see,

          9  really, leagues of marsh ahead of you, is a

         10  wonderful thing.  It is something, I think, that we

         11  really need to fight to protect.  This could be a

         12  view from another century, with an egret feeding in

         13  the shallows at the edge of Kreischer's Cove and

         14  Sharrotts Road shore lands.  You really cannot see

         15  evidence of the current century, in the sense of

         16  industry or even the cell phone.

         17                 Then Parks are also, these areas are

         18  also being restored, and rejuvenated.  Here, the

         19  Salt Marsh restoration team of Parks has been so

         20  critical, in the harbor herons, and taking funds

         21  derived from penalties levied due to oil pollution,

         22  and putting them to tremendous good work, and

         23  getting marshes going again.

         24            I wanted to focus primarily on Arlington

         25  Marsh and Old Place Creek, just to underscore that
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          2  both of these are highly significant sites that are

          3  in partial City ownership.  Arlington Marsh is 40

          4  acres of marsh, and upland, and approximately 40-

          5  acres of mud flats and shallows.  The neighboring

          6  Mariners Marsh, 107 acres, were once considered as

          7  one site in the original harbor herons report.  In

          8  fact, they are two sites, but they are separated

          9  from each other by Richmond Terrace, the road, but

         10  they are hydraulically connected through Bellmans

         11  Creek or Newtons Creek, and they are ecological

         12  connected as habitat.  The two sites now appear to

         13  have different fates.  Mariners Marsh received full

         14  protection in 1997, as a New York City Park.

         15  Arlington Marsh, partly under City and partly under

         16  corporate ownership, really remains very vulnerable

         17  to development pressures.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Mr. Blanchard, I

         19  am going to have to ask you to sum up if you can,

         20  because we have some time constraints this morning.

         21                 MR. BLANCHARD:  Okay.  Let me just go

         22  to Old Place Creek.  This is a view of Mariners

         23  Marsh, which ties in with, of course, as part of

         24  that complex of marshes, and is really a magnificent

         25  site.  Old Place Creek, pictured here from Goethals
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          2  Bridge overview, is also very important.  New York

          3  City EDC owns the mouth of Old Place Creek and the

          4  surrounding wetlands.  New York State Department

          5  Environmental Conservation owns two separate parcels

          6  totaling 58- acres.  I understand there has been an

          7  increase on that.  There are also corporate and

          8  private landowners.  Just one moment, note on the

          9  significance, the many reference to both these sites

         10  in depth, in this study, which I invite anyone to

         11  read. The salt marshes at Old Place Creek and at

         12  neighboring Gulf Port, are remnants of a once

         13  extensive marsh system that spanned the length of

         14  the Arthur Kill, from Arlington Marsh in the north,

         15  to the area of the Outerbridge Crossing and beyond.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.  Mr.

         18  Burg.

         19                 MR. BURG:  Thank you all.

         20  Councilmen, it is a privilege to speak to you today

         21  on an issue which is close to my heart.  My name is

         22  David Burg.  I am president of a new group called

         23  Wild Metro.  We are just in the process of opening a

         24  headquarters in Manhattan.  We will be located on

         25  51st Street.  We are group whose goal is to protect
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          2  nature and the environment in Metropolitan regions

          3  around the world.  I want to bring a couple of

          4  different perspectives briefly to you.

          5                 I had the privilege of being at the

          6  UN Earth Summit in Johannesburg last year, and was

          7  the guest of the City of Capetown.

          8                 The problems we are encountering in

          9  New York, in terms of having it all, yes, we are New

         10  Yorkers, we want everything, we want to be able to

         11  go to Broadway, and we also want to be able to have

         12  a little wilderness right next door to that. Right

         13  now we do.  I think it is a marvelous situation that

         14  people around the world are realizing, and somebody

         15  uses the word, it is used a lot, quality of life.

         16  To me, I do not like words that become buzz words,

         17  what I like is to think of that kid getting his feet

         18  wet while he goes exploring the wetlands.  Or, the

         19  person who gets to see, as, I take lots of people

         20  out to see, 400- year- old trees in the Bronx.     It

         21  is totally counter intuitive, people do not realize

         22  have much we still have here, and the surprising

         23  thing is, it is true in a number of cities.  Not

         24  every city in the world has what we have, however.

         25  Okay, Capetown is pretty spectacular in what they
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          2  have within the city.

          3                 We have places, that we have heard a

          4  lot about today, places that are truly special.  I

          5  want to talk about this from two different

          6  perspectives.  I have a background both as a

          7  naturalist, and by the way the difference between a

          8  naturalist and a scientist, is a naturalist does not

          9  like to do the math.  I have a background

         10  professionally as that, but I also have a background

         11  in real estate.  It is a pretty unusual background

         12  for an environmentalist.  But, I think it is

         13  something that you are going to see increasingly,

         14  which is that people from the economic side are

         15  seeing the value of development, as I said before,

         16  gives us everything, gives us what we want out of

         17  our economy.  We have to not forget, on the other

         18  hand, that the economy is a tool for a good life,

         19  and part of having a good life is having

         20  environment.

         21                 From that general background, let me

         22  talk about specifically, what I have done in New

         23  York City.  I have been involved with New York City

         24  Audubon as a board member and past president for 15

         25  years, and I am glad to see E.J.McAdams in the
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          2  audience here, who is the current Executive

          3  Director, and a terrific addition to the

          4  environmental professionals in the City. I have done

          5  a lot of very specific detailed work.  We moved to

          6  the City over 15 years ago, but it was sort of

          7  moving back, in the sense that my dad grew up in

          8  Brooklyn.  I have been living in the Bronx since

          9  1985, and got interested in the issue of urban

         10  sites, because of finding out how much special stuff

         11  there was here.

         12                 Specifically some of the sites that

         13  are up for your consideration today, are sites that

         14  I have done a lot of work with, both in terms of

         15  bringing school groups to sites in the Bronx.  I

         16  organized extensive programs in the East Bronx, and

         17  in terms of Audubon work in Jamaica Bay where I

         18  created and organized, with initial financial

         19  assistance from the EPA's Harbor Estuary Program, a

         20  major restoration project that we did in areas of

         21  Rockaway Peninsular, and the far Rockaways.  These

         22  sites are all, the ones up before you today, most of

         23  them are fairly small sites, but small is not

         24  necessary bad.  What you have to realize, is

         25  biologically we know that the City has taken a hit,
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          2  we know we are not Yellow Stone and Yosemite, in

          3  terms of environment.  People like myself say that

          4  is okay.  People have to live somewhere, and people

          5  are an important part of the world too.  I think

          6  environmentalists are increasingly realizing that

          7  what we are doing is not nature versus people.  It

          8  is how to have that peaceful coexistence between

          9  nature and people.

         10                 The sites we are talking about today,

         11  we have lost so much already, that even the small

         12  sites we are talking about today have real value.

         13  In particular, the sites along Eastchester in

         14  Southern Bronx, I am very familiar with, that whole

         15  area, the big wetlands complex.  These are sites on

         16  the west side of Eastchester Creek, Westchester

         17  Creek, and they are right across. Part of that whole

         18  complex includes Ferry Point Park, which has

         19  outstanding aggregations of plants and animals, and

         20  things that, when I first discovered, was amazed to

         21  find the existence of nature so close to industrial

         22  area.  Those sites are very important on their own,

         23  they are important as one small piece of the whole

         24  international picture of migratory shorebirds and

         25  water birds, these sites are very special.
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          2                 Goose Creek in Hutchinson River, is a

          3  site that is part of the Harbor Herons complex.  You

          4  heard a little bit about the Harbor Herons from

          5  Peter, for the really signature accomplishment of

          6  the Audubon Society, working again, with a lot of

          7  partners, including the Parks Department.  For

          8  whatever reason, we do not understand completely

          9  what happens with these birds, but they shift sites,

         10  so that some of key sites that they have been using

         11  in the Arthur Kills, they have abandoned.  They are

         12  now on the ocean side of Staten Island, and they are

         13  still hanging on, these nesting colonies, in Goose

         14  Creek.  It is also part of Pelham Bay Park, which in

         15  our evaluations of urban parks around the world, is

         16  one of, probably, the top ten urban parks, and

         17  probably very under appreciated.  What ranks it high

         18  is the diversity, the size, it is 2,764- acres, it

         19  allows you to have, I brought in somebody from the

         20  Midwest who said the prairie part alone, if it was

         21  in the Midwest, they would be fighting to protect

         22  it, in the heart of the prairie area.  So, you have

         23  prairies, you have open forests, and you have

         24  wetlands, you have all this in close, "cheek by

         25  jowl," and part of that is Goose Island.
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          2                 Finally, the Flushing Meadow Airport

          3  site, is another one of these really spectacular

          4  sites.  It has been abandoned, it has got muskrats,

          5  turtles, it has got all kinds of neat stuff.  And

          6  again, my own feeling on these, I will not go into

          7  the details of all the Jamaica Bay sites, but they

          8  are all equally, especially the Arverne site,

          9  incredibly important for things in the region.  It

         10  is as important for the kids, for the education

         11  opportunity, as it for the nature itself.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I want to thank

         14  all three of you.  I know that the members of both

         15  Committees share your passion for these sites, and

         16  your desire to see them protected as much as

         17  possible.

         18                 Chair Addabbo.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, very

         20  much, Council Member Yassky.

         21                 Ms. Sommers, a question, early on,

         22  last year, one of the first hearings that we ever

         23  did for the Committee on Parks and Recreation, we

         24  did an oversight on the Clean Water Clean Air Act,

         25  and we were actually finding out how shortchanged we
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          2  were with the funding from the Clean Water Clean Air

          3  Act.  Governors representatives, actually, did a

          4  presentation in my district giving some money for

          5  Jamaica Bay, and I was very happy to see that.

          6                 What kind of funding did you get

          7  from, or what kind of assistance did you get from

          8  the Clean Water Clean Air Act?

          9                 MS. SOMMERS:  You are talking the New

         10  York State Bond Act, right?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes, of course.

         12                 MS. SOMMERS:  None of the sites that

         13  were identified through the Harbor Estuary Program

         14  Habitat Work Group have been purchased to date using

         15  those funds.  I think that is still the case.  The

         16  State has purchased land in New York City using

         17  those funds, but those were not identified through

         18  the auspices of this project.  They were not, that

         19  was not, a priority site.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, you have

         21  had no assistance from the Bond Act.

         22                 MS. SOMMERS:  Not for acquisition.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right, aside

         24  from acquisition.

         25                 MS. SOMMERS:  There has been
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          2  restorations funded. I think, Alex, alluded to some

          3  of those earlier.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, and I

          5  noticed, you said Port Authority as being one of the

          6  agencies helping.  Has any other State or Federal

          7  Agencies helping you out as well?

          8                 MS. SOMMERS:  Yes, we actually, just

          9  recently, within the last year and a half to two

         10  years, the Federal Government started a coastal

         11  estuary, a coastal and estuary acquisition program.

         12  That it runs through Noah, National Ocean and

         13  Atmospheric Agency, I think is what that stands for,

         14  and we received a little under a million dollars for

         15  the Staten Island side, and a little over a million

         16  dollars for the New Jersey side. Something in the

         17  neighborhood of 2 to 3.5 million within the last two

         18  years.  Not a huge sum of money, but the pot of

         19  money nationally is not large, so we were pretty

         20  excited to get that, and the Trust for Public Land

         21  was a big part of that lobbying effort, and assisted

         22  us with that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, very

         24  much, Ms. Sommers.  Any other questions from my

         25  colleagues?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  My one question

          3  is, in bringing your arguments about the sites you

          4  have been talking about to the Parks Department,

          5  have you found a cooperative partner in seeking to

          6  preserve these wetlands?

          7                 MS. SOMMERS:  Yes, the Parks

          8  Department has, clearly wishes to fulfill its

          9  mission, and has been very cooperative.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  What do you see

         11  as standing in the way of the further protective

         12  measures that you have advocated?

         13                 MS. SOMMERS:  I think that some of

         14  the other agencies are clinging to plans that were

         15  made a long times ago. The Arverne Plan dates back

         16  some 20- years, very old thinking to put dense

         17  populations right in a coastal hazardous situation,

         18  it is very old thinking.  Especially with global

         19  warming, climate change, the increasing frequency of

         20  hurricanes that we are starting to see. It is poor

         21  planning, we believe.

         22                 The Arlington Marsh situation is

         23  similar in that the ports have been wanting to

         24  expand, and wanting to expand for a long time.

         25  Port, the Howland Hook facility has already eaten up
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          2  hundreds and hundreds of acres of marshes, and the

          3  idea that they would be allowed to fill another 60

          4  to 100 acres for port purposes is probably

          5  unrealistic.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, thank you,

          7  very much. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, the next

          9  panel is E.J. McAdams, from the New York City

         10  Audubon Society, Michelle Bicek, from Environmental

         11  Defense, Eugenia Faltow, who is the Chair of the

         12  Community Advisory Committee of the New York\New

         13  Jersey Harbor Estuary Program, and Al Appleton, from

         14  the Regional Planning Association.

         15                 Why don't we just go left to right,

         16  unless you have another preference.

         17                 MS. FLATOW:  The individual

         18  Congressmen in Washington that have submitted monies

         19  for individual projects in the Bronx River, Jamaica

         20  Bay, and Staten Island.  So, we are working on, what

         21  we call a caucus, to get all of our congress persons

         22  on a caucus to get us the kind of money we will need

         23  to do the major acquisition and restoration job.

         24                 We also have major funding from WORDA

         25  (phonetic) for Corps of Engineers, which I will
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          2  refer to later in my testimony for a Regional Plan.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Why don't you

          4  just go ahead with your testimony?

          5                 MS. FLATOW:  Fair enough, sorry.

          6                 My name is Eugenia M. Flatow.  Thank

          7  you, very much, for inviting me to appear before you

          8  today on the subject of protecting City- owned

          9  wetlands.  I am Co- Chair of the Citizens Advisory

         10  Committee of the Harbor Estuary Program, and a

         11  member of their Management Committee.

         12                 In the HEP Comprehensive Conservation

         13  and Management Plan fondly known as the CCMP,

         14  approved in March 1996, the first important chapter

         15  is on the Management of Habitat and Living

         16  Resources.  Extensive goals and objectives

         17  concerning development and implementation of plans

         18  to protect and restore significant coastal habitats

         19  and impacted resources have the following specific

         20  goal under Action H- 44:

         21                  "New York State will increase the

         22  quantity and quality of tidal wetland resources and,

         23  where feasible and desirable, its freshwater wetland

         24  resources.  New York State will also explore a

         25  policy for enhanced protection of all other marine
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          2  and estuarine habitats."

          3                 So there is precedent for working

          4  with you on how to protect them.

          5                 When implementation of the CCMP was

          6  initiated, a working Committee was set up on Habitat

          7  which has developed, and you just heard about it, a

          8  map on particular areas needing protection and

          9  restoration.  Since ownership, management and

         10  monitoring are critical for effective protection and

         11  restoration, this has presented difficulty for the

         12  program to implement the objectives, but it was

         13  recognized.  Which is why the very first objective

         14  of that chapter on habitat called for:  "a regional

         15  strategy to protect the Harbor\Bight watershed and

         16  to mitigate continuing adverse human- induced

         17  effects."  And, I think you will be hearing about

         18  that from Mr. Appleton.

         19                 Funding and approval for the Corps of

         20  Engineers was approved and the initial plan for

         21  Needs and Opportunities has been completed and is

         22  out for review and discussion.  What you are now

         23  considering today:  Changing responsibility for

         24  City- owned wetlands is very good, and very

         25  important.  It will empower the department which is
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          2  already expert in protecting, and restoring these

          3  precious resources to develop the necessary

          4  protection plans for what the City already owns.

          5                 There are already special

          6  difficulties for the freshwater wetlands.  Because

          7  the State Department of Environmental Conservation

          8  is reluctant to deny permits to developers for any

          9  project that does not meet the state law limiting

         10  jurisdiction, only when there exists an aggregate of

         11  12.6- acres of contiguous freshwater wetlands, and

         12  when the site has been added to State wetland maps.

         13  We have asked the department to ground truth the

         14  work that has already been accomplished by the U.S

         15  Fish and Wildlife Service on Staten Island, as they

         16  did in our watershed, so that the department can

         17  map, and consider protection down to one acre to

         18  give them better control of permit applications.

         19  The Senate has already passed a bill for a one year

         20  moratorium under Senator Markee (phonetic), and some

         21  of us are talking to the Assemblymen to get a

         22  similar bill to give us time to do what we have to

         23  do.

         24                 This would also offer protection to

         25  the Coastal Program.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  We do have your

          3  statement Ms. Flatow, so, if you want to summarize,

          4  feel free to, because your statement will be part of

          5  the record.

          6                 MS. FLATOW:  Fine, I just wanted to

          7  mention that on the Coastal Program, we have the

          8  right for consistency evaluation. No site on the

          9  waterfront should be developed that is not

         10  consistent with coastal plans.  I love to talk to

         11  people about that because it is an important use

         12  that we could implement.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.

         15                 Mr. Appleton.

         16                 MR. APPLETON:  Good morning,

         17  Councilmen, ladies and gentlemen, as you know, I am

         18  with currently, Senior Fellow with RPA.  I want to

         19  give you the perspective, on which I am going to

         20  make a few short, but I hope complete comments.  I

         21  am currently managing for the Regional Plan

         22  Association, the program to coordinate the

         23  development of both the port, and the estuary's

         24  restoration.  We have just completed coordinating

         25  for HEP a report to the Army Corp of Engineers on
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          2  restoration needs and opportunities.

          3                 I will also say, with some pride,

          4  that in the 1980's, as President of the Audubon

          5  Society in this City, I founded Buffer the Bay, and

          6  Harbor Herons.  And, as DEP Commissioner in the

          7   '90's, I created the Staten Island Bluebelt, and

          8  engineered, working with Mark Matsul (phonetic), of

          9  the Natural Resources Group, many of the kinds of

         10  transfers you are considering now.

         11                 They were all good ideas, they are

         12  all good ideas for the same reason this is good

         13  ideas.  Developing wetlands, there are always

         14  alternatives to these sites with very, very rare

         15  exceptions.  But, there are no alternatives to these

         16  sites as a natural resource for the City, for the

         17  clean water they provide, for the open space, for

         18  the recreation, and for the quality of life that is

         19  essential, if we want to keep the kinds of

         20  communities, and build the kinds of new communities

         21  in this City we want.

         22            The other point I want to make is about

         23  the word sites.  I have nothing to say that is in

         24  contradiction to any of the comments of my

         25  colleagues, so they have all been right and on the
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          2  point.  I want to talk about the idea of sites.

          3  This is a map, copies of which, I would like to give

          4  each of you, that we have, that RPA has prepared.

          5  This is the original wetland heritage of the harbor.

          6    Obviously, to have 20 million people live here, we

          7  had to change some of that.  We have changed much-

          8  to- much of that. This, the little spots of green

          9  you see, overlaying all the red is what is left.  If

         10  you study this map, and I will leave a copy of this

         11  map for each of the Committees, you will see that we

         12  have a lot of little sites left, but we are down to

         13  three basic systems and two part systems.  We have

         14  Jamaica Bay, we have Hackensack, we have the Arthur

         15  Kill, and then we have Park Systems left in the East

         16  River, and down in Raritan.  Now, environmentally,

         17  systems are far more important than sites  Sites

         18  make systems, and you cannot think of just a site as

         19  for its competing use.  You have to think about what

         20  the site contributes to the natural system.  That is

         21  why we created Buffer the Bay, that is why we

         22  created Harbor Herons, that is why we created the

         23  Staten Island Bluebelt, that is why we created the

         24  Watershed Program, because they are systems.

         25                 Everyone of you has been in politics

                                                            68

          1  PARKS AND RECREATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  long enough, and rose to your current eminence, has

          3  dealt at least once with the community that does not

          4  want a new incompatible use in its community.  These

          5  communities are often condemned as being nimbi or

          6  parochial or narrow- minded, but behind all of that

          7  is a knowledge that part of their values, the

          8  community is the consistency of their community

          9  character.  It is exactly the same with nature.

         10  Maybe one of these sites might have some value for

         11  developer, but what it will do to what is left of

         12  these systems is not worth it.               Let me

         13  just take two examples, and go through your list and

         14  I will complete.

         15                 We heard about Arlington Marsh. RPA

         16  is very committed to the expansion of the City's

         17  port facilities.  Howland Hook is important, it is

         18  quite possible to overstate how important Howland

         19  Hook is, compared to the need in this City for a

         20  functioning natural ecosystem.  What we need is not

         21  to continue to compete with New York and New Jersey,

         22  we need an integrated freight system.  Developing

         23  Arlington Marsh will not give us that. You heard

         24  Carolyn Sommers, who is my colleague in writing the

         25  Harbor Herons report in 1990, talk about the
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          2  greenhouse affect in Arverne.  Another major reason

          3  that all of these sites, and all of the remaining

          4  wetland sites with only the rarest exceptions, none

          5  of which I have yet seen, should go to the City, the

          6  greenhouse affect is coming.  If the greenhouse

          7  affect is going to raise the ocean one to four feet,

          8  it is going to change storm events drastically.  Why

          9  do you think we had last year, one of the worst

         10  draughts in our history, and this year we are having

         11  one of the worst rain events in our history?  It is

         12  both the same phenomenon.  So, we are far better

         13  off, we have to see these wetlands as the protective

         14  infrastructure of the City for the long term changes

         15  in climate and, sea level that are coming.

         16                 The list this Council has prepared,

         17  let me say in closing, is an excellent starting list

         18  that should just be the beginning of this

         19  transition.  I can think of no better way to

         20  celebrate the 20th anniversary of the Natural

         21  Resources Group than to complete the transfer of

         22  City- owned wetlands into the City, and then move to

         23  acquire the remaining parcels held in private

         24  property.

         25                 Thank you, gentlemen.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, for

          3  that extremely useful context.

          4                 MR. MCADAMS:  Good morning Council

          5  Members.

          6                 My name is E.J. McAdams, and I am the

          7  Executive Director of New York City Audubon.

          8                 With over 10,000 members throughout

          9  the five boroughs, New York City Audubon is the

         10  City's leading environmental organization for

         11  conserving, and protecting birds and bird habitat.

         12  We are delighted that you have called a hearing to

         13  protect City owned wetlands within, and outside the

         14  jurisdiction of the New York City Department of

         15  Parks and Recreation.  We strongly encourage you to

         16  protect these wetlands because they are some of the

         17  last opportunities to secure crucial habitat for

         18  numerous avian species and other wildlife that all

         19  New Yorkers will enjoy.

         20                 Last weekend I visited Gerritsen

         21  Creek, a wetland in Parks- owned Marine Park, with

         22  my four year old son.  While crossing a bridge on

         23  the trail we saw two rare New York City birds, a

         24  little blue heron and a tri- colored heron, foraging

         25  for food.  It was his first time seeing these birds,
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          2  and he quickly began mimicking their movements, and

          3  asking me questions.  This incredible educational

          4  moment between boy and bird was made possible

          5  because of the protection afforded this wetland.

          6  There are unprotected parcels of land, some of which

          7  we are talking about today, which are better

          8  functioning wetlands than Gerritsen Creek.

          9                 Since 1979, New York City Audubon has

         10  advocated to the City Council for the protection of

         11  habitat for over 350 bird species, nearly one- third

         12  of all North American species, which are seen in New

         13  York City.  We have had some successes, especially

         14  with the Harbor Herons complex of islands on the

         15  Arthur Kill\Kill Van Kull, which we have surveyed

         16  for almost 20- years.  All three, Shooters, Prall's

         17  and Isle of Meadows, are now owned by Parks, and

         18  Prall's is co- managed with New York City Audubon.

         19  Goose Island in the Bronx is still unprotected.

         20  This spring, our survey recorded 15 great egrets, 66

         21  black- crowned night herons, 2 yellow- crowned night

         22  herons, and 40 snowy egrets on the island.  We urge

         23  you turn this land over to Parks.

         24                 In addition, New York City Audubon

         25  has coauthored two habitat protection plans with the
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          2  Trust for Public Land, Al had spoke a little bit

          3  about it.  The first report called Buffer the Bay

          4  Revisited, concerns properties  around Jamaica Bay.

          5  These areas, including Paerdegat Basin, and the

          6  upland habitat around JFK, and Idlewild Park, need

          7  protection and restoration to insure the health of

          8  the Bay, and the already dwindling marshes.  In An

          9  Islanded Nature, we document City- owned parcels

         10  such as, Old Place Creek, Saw Mill Creek, and

         11  Arlington Marsh that are prime foraging habitat for

         12  nesting herons.  These parcels, especially Arlington

         13  Marsh, which is the largest remaining intact salt

         14  marsh on the Kill Van Kull, should be put under

         15  Park's jurisdiction.

         16                 Finally, Flushing Airport in the

         17  Arverne renewal area, need to be protected and

         18  restored.  Parks Natural Resources Group has the

         19  expertise to conduct this kind of habitat

         20  restoration, and should be given the opportunity to

         21  do so.                        By placing these

         22  properties under the jurisdiction of the City of New

         23  York, Department of Parks and Recreation, you

         24  protect these critical habitat areas for the birds

         25  and wildlife that future generations of New Yorkers
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          2  will appreciate and enjoy.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MS. BICEK:  Good morning, my name is

          5  Michelle Bicek, and I am testifying today on behalf

          6  of Environmental Defense. Thank you for this

          7  opportunity to comment today.

          8                 Environmental Defense is a non-

          9  profit, non- partisan environmental organization

         10  with more than 3,000 members nationwide, and 50,000

         11  members in New York.  Since 1967, our organization

         12  has linked science, economics, and law to solve

         13  environmental challenges.

         14                 Environmental Defense has long been

         15  involved with issues relating to protection and

         16  restoration of wetland, and adjacent habitat in the

         17  Lower Hudson- Raritan Estuary.  We, as a founding

         18  member of the Waterfront Park Coalition, are also

         19  active proponent of public access to the City's

         20  waterfront.  We strongly support the City Council's

         21  support for creating an inventory of City- owned

         22  parcels of land on the waterfront.  We recognize

         23  that this effort is important for future habitat

         24  conservation, and for identifying opportunities for

         25  public access.
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          2                 As New Yorkers return to the water's

          3  edge, it is equally important to ensure that the

          4  region's aquatic, and wetland habitat be preserved.

          5  New York City's waterfront, and estuary was once

          6  teeming with life.  The harbor was one of the

          7  country's three main oyster breeding beds, dolphin

          8  once swam here, fish were so plentiful that the

          9  helped sustain the city's early economy.  New York

         10  has traditionally paid too little attention to the

         11  spectacular natural resources of our City's great

         12  estuarine ecologies, with the consequence that

         13  today, many of these resources are degraded.

         14                 For example, Jamaica Bay originally

         15  included over 16,000- acres of wetlands, of which

         16  only 4,000- acres remain today.              New

         17  York City owns many key wetlands, and many are not

         18  within the jurisdiction of agencies tasked with

         19  their preservation.  For the future of the harbor,

         20  as economic and natural resource, we urge that

         21  critical wetlands be protected now and, where

         22  needed, that these wetlands be transferred to the

         23  jurisdiction of agencies most capable of careful

         24  stewardship for the future.  Without question, any

         25  strategy for the future must also include adequate
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          2  City, Sate and Federal funding.  We urge the City

          3  Council to make available funds for City agencies to

          4  use as matching funds to secure grants from other

          5  levels of government, and we urge the City Council

          6  to call on City agencies to make full application

          7  for available State and Federal funds.

          8                 We believe that habitat restoration,

          9  and public access are essential components of port

         10  modernization.  Just as the New York Waterfront

         11  Blueprint documents opportunities for parks and

         12  public access, so has the Habitat Estuary Program

         13  identified specific habitat restoration and

         14  acquisition opportunities. Habitat restoration is

         15  important to, biodiversity and species protection;

         16  maintaining the quality of waters in the region's

         17  harbors, bays and rivers; and ensuring strong

         18  supplies of aquatic wildlife, from striped bass to

         19  egrets and shellfish.  Wetlands, for example, play a

         20  critically important role in filtering pollutants

         21  from degraded waters, preventing floods, and

         22  providing nesting habitat to a broad range of

         23  aquatic life.

         24                 Many of these opportunities include

         25  City- owned wetland parcels.  Some of these are
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          2  threatened by development now. Many others simply

          3  suffer from ongoing degradation.  For example, the

          4  spectacular Arlington Marsh in Staten Island is one

          5  of the largest unprotected contiguous tidal wetlands

          6  in the harbor, yet it is threatened by economic

          7  development and port expansion. Alternatives exist

          8  that would allow port expansion without wetland

          9  destruction.  Given the scarcity of contiguous

         10  wetland parcels in the harbor, the City should act

         11  now to place Arlington Marsh under the protection of

         12  the Park's department.

         13                 As the citizens rediscover the

         14  waterfront for recreation, economic development and

         15  ferry transportation, it is fitting that the City

         16  have a strategy for the protection, and restoration

         17  of these remarkable resources.  Therefore, we

         18  encourage the City to transfer these parcels of

         19  property to the New York City Department of Parks

         20  and Recreation's jurisdiction in order to ensure

         21  their proper protection.  This is a small first step

         22  to protecting these sensitive waterfront properties.

         23

         24                 In the future, next steps should

         25  include:  Setting aside funds that will make it
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          2  possible for the Parks Department to apply for

          3  Federal and State grants that require local matches;

          4  encouraging the City agencies to coordinate efforts

          5  and funding with other agencies, such as the US Army

          6  Corps of Engineers, that need local matches in order

          7  to invest in harbor habitat; and ensuring integrated

          8  port planning to harness port infrastructure

          9  investment to also serve habitat and open space

         10  goals.

         11                 Thanks.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you, very

         13  much, Michelle.

         14                 Before we get to questions from our

         15  panel, just bare with me one second, we need to take

         16  a vote on HO 399- a, which is Adopt- a- Park.  A

         17  quite historic piece of legislation.  Again,

         18  sponsored by every single Council Member, including

         19  Speaker Miller, and in addition, also Public

         20  Advocate Betsy Gotbaum.  At this point I would

         21  appreciate a vocal.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Brewer

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, I know
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          2  on the Westside there is a tremendous concern about

          3  privatization of parks, but this does not do that,

          4  and I have read it carefully, and followed the

          5  hearings and I vote Aye.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Aye

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Serrano

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SERRANO:  Aye

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gallagher

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Aye

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of five in

         13  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         14  abstentions, the item is adopted.  Council Members

         15  please sign the Committee Report.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  To my

         17  colleagues thank you, very much.  I know this is a

         18  crazy time, with graduations and all, and I thank

         19  you, very much for being here, and for your time.

         20                 And now for the Panel.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  A number of you

         22  mentioned Jamaica Bay, and obviously, Jamaica Bay is

         23  pretty much right within my district.  I do

         24  appreciate your interest there, but like I mentioned

         25  earlier, in an opening statement, it is my concern
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          2  that there is a wildlife preserve there that is open

          3  to the public, but that very few people utilize it.

          4  It is quite under- utilized.

          5                 What efforts, and this is open the

          6  whole panel, what efforts do you think could, either

          7  the City Council make, or the City Administration

          8  make, even the Federal Government, to distribute

          9  information more to our public, not only about going

         10  there for class trips, but also, just the interest

         11  or the importance of protecting our wildlife areas,

         12  and our environmental areas?  I open up to the

         13  panel.

         14                 MR. MCADAMS:   I would like to

         15  comment on that first, Mr. Chairman.  Wildlife

         16  refuges do not necessarily serve the public best if

         17  they have a steady stream of visitors through them.

         18  The wildlife refuges in the Gateway facilities are

         19  in fact, serve an enormous number of school

         20  children.

         21                 For example, under very special

         22  circumstances, even if they do not show similar

         23  numbers for the general public.  It is important in

         24  all of these activities, if you look at Jacob Reese

         25  (phonetic) Park, for example, it is a huge public
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          2  demand.  I think the Park Service has actually done

          3  a pretty good job of balancing the character of the

          4  facility against public use.  Part of the advantages

          5  of these facilities to school children, is the fact

          6  that, they can get some kind of sense of an

          7  appropriate outdoor environment without being

          8  plagued by much of the visitor "ticky tacky" for

          9  lack of a better term, that plagues the area.

         10                 If I can make one other quick comment

         11  about Jamaica Bay, the really most critical problem

         12  with Jamaica Bay, at the moment, is that we are

         13  losing 44- acres of wetland a year, in Jamaica Bay,

         14  and though, that the public agencies involved are

         15  good- hearted about it.  Over the next five years,

         16  nothing is going to happen with pilot programs for a

         17  few acres.  Over the next five years, we are

         18  probably going to lose another 250- acres at Jamaica

         19  Bay if we continue on our current management course.

         20    So, I think it is very critical we do everything

         21  we can to get the public involved.  It is also very

         22  critical, we act much more aggressively to deal with

         23  this problem, or we are not going to have a resource

         24  to show the public.

         25                 MR. APPLETON:  Chairman, I just
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          2  wanted to speak to that for a moment.  I think that

          3  is one of the reasons that we are here today is,

          4  turn lands over to the Parks Department, because

          5  they are actually best suited to do that work that

          6  you are talking about.  Chief Brash, who spoke

          7  earlier today, Chief of Urban Parks Service, which

          8  includes the National Resources Group, the

          9  conservation arm, as well as the Urban Park Rangers,

         10  which is their education arm.  They do a lot of

         11  programming in these parks, they are certainly

         12  trying to bring attention to it.  New York City

         13  Audubon has been working with them, again with the

         14  communications program, with New Yorkers for Parks.

         15  Trying to get people to learn more about their

         16  natural areas, and to have activities for them to do

         17  in these natural areas.

         18                 MS. FALTOW:  We think it is important

         19  to reach both teachers and youngsters, starting even

         20  at the third grade.  With programs that take them

         21  out where they get their dirty, and begin to really

         22  dig into things, find worms, and test soil and

         23  water, because that is where it is, that is really

         24  where it is at.  Having that generation become as

         25  heartfelt as we are about open areas, open space,
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          2  both parks, and the restoration possibility.  We

          3  have been sponsoring partnerships in West Harlem at

          4  the plant, and the park to do exactly this.  We have

          5  so far contacted about eight classes which were

          6  done, and we are going to continue that with our

          7  partner.  I think that is an important part, is

          8  getting inside the heads.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ms. Faltow, I

         10  agree with you. You know I go, I visited every

         11  school within my district, and the resource that we

         12  have right in our own backyards, whether it be at

         13  the beach, or that be in Jamaica Bay.  Really to me,

         14  in my opinion, under- utilized, and I think there

         15  needs to be more promotion, but more awareness of

         16  how we need to protect them.  So, I do agree.

         17                 Is there any other questions from my

         18  colleagues at this point?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, I just

         20  want to say, I am actually, currently nurturing a

         21  little habitat in a, of worms, in a tupperware, that

         22  my daughter brought home from third grade.  So, one

         23  can do this even in a New York City apartment, but

         24  plainly your points are well taken.  I just want to

         25  thank you, for, between yourselves and the previous
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          2  panel, that we have really the leadership of the

          3  environmental and preservation community, and I

          4  think that as we press this, the fight for

          5  protection of these particular critical wetlands.

          6  Your unanimous voices will be, I think of great

          7  value.  So thank you for providing them.  Mr.

          8  Appleton, I think your, I think that your point

          9  about the context, and this site by site, in any

         10  site there will be arguments on both sides.  You see

         11  uses, and you think, well what is the marginal

         12  contribution to preservation, versus seers of

         13  definable kind of productive use, people can be

         14  fooled, until you step back, and you say a wetland,

         15  a system is nothing but a collection of individual

         16  parcels, if you do not save the parcel, you do not

         17  preserve the sites, you have just destroyed the

         18  entire habitat.  The entire wetlands systems as you

         19  put it, and I think that is an invaluable

         20  perspective.  Thank you.

         21                 MR. APPLETON:  Thank you.

         22                 MS. FALTOW:  Could I say one thing I

         23  did not get to?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Surely.

         25                 MS. FALTOW:  If we allow other
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          2  developments on the waterfront, it not only

          3  privatizes the waterfront, but it increases

          4  transportation, and big shopping centers, and all

          5  the other things that inhibit our people really

          6  enjoying the waterfront, for both access, and

          7  general use.  In New York with all the various

          8  needs, it is important to preserve that particular

          9  part of the waterfront that has its resources to

         10  share.  Thank you.

         11                 MR. APPLETON:  I appreciate very

         12  much, your comments on the leadership of the

         13  environmental community.  We would like to ask you

         14  for your leadership and help, on this issue, in two

         15  aspects.

         16                 First, we would like you to make sure

         17  City Agencies are aware that if get the right

         18  changes in Federal Legislation, the donation of

         19  these wetlands can count as local match towards

         20  restoration projects.  It can help all local

         21  neighborhoods.

         22                 Secondly, as part of the work we have

         23  been doing to promote port development\estuary

         24  collaboration, the Port Authority has put $60

         25  million aside.  Thirty million for each state, for
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          2  the acquisition of habitat, and we would, this

          3  Council should know about this, this Council should

          4  be a voice urging the Port Authority to spend that

          5  money as soon as possible, and urging the City to

          6  integrate its plans for these sites with the

          7  acquisition potential we have created.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you,

          9  thank you, very much.  Have a good day, have a good

         10  weekend.

         11                 Our next panel, a panel of three, is

         12  Derrick Warmington, Richard Hellenbrecht, and

         13  Barbara Brown.

         14                 I think it is safe to say good

         15  afternoon at this point, and if you would just state

         16  your name, and give your testimony, please.

         17                 MR. HELLENBRECHT:  I just wanted to

         18  change my testimony to good afternoon.  Good

         19  afternoon Mr. Chairman and members of the New York

         20  City Council.  Thank you for this opportunity to

         21  talk to you today, about the serious concerns of

         22  endangered, and diminishing open space in this great

         23  City.

         24                 My name is Richard C. Hellenbrecht,

         25  and I am speaking today as Chair of Community Board
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          2  13 in Queens, about a resolution adopted by our

          3  Board on February 24th of this year. Several New

          4  York City sponsored and private projects, threaten

          5  to deprive the community of valuable,

          6  environmentally, and ecologically rich open space.

          7  As an added bonus, these projects would also force

          8  tremendous increases in traffic, congestion, and

          9  pollution in the already congested area.  Following

         10  is a summary of the resolution.

         11                 Community Board 13, Queens, one of

         12  the largest Community boards in the City of New

         13  York, encompasses the very diverse and fragile

         14  environment of Jamaica Bay, which has been mentioned

         15  many times today, already.  We have identified as a

         16  top priority to preserve the ecology of our natural

         17  areas, wetlands and waterfront areas.  The primarily

         18  residential neighborhoods of Springfield Gardens and

         19  Rosedale, including the sections of Brookville,

         20  Warnerville, and Meadowmere, have organized the

         21  Eastern Queens Alliance with a key mission of

         22  maintaining the wetlands, and waterfront environment

         23  of the area.

         24                 The numerous local parks, including

         25  Brookville and Springfield Parks, and areas
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          2  designated as "Forever Wild," including Idlewild

          3  Park and Public Place, are increasingly endangered

          4  by encroaching development.  Furthermore, the

          5  thoroughfares of Rockaway and Brookville Boulevards,

          6  which traverse the areas, are primary transportation

          7  routes not only for these towns, but also the

          8  Rockaways, and for the Five Towns residents of

          9  Nassau County.  Rockaway Boulevard in fact, is

         10  prominently posted as a coastal evacuation route in

         11  the event of weather emergencies, yet it is fully

         12  over utilized, and unsafe at present.  The only

         13  intersecting roadway in the area capable of

         14  relieving traffic to the highways further north,

         15  Brookville Boulevard, due to its proximity to the

         16  wetlands can not be widened, and accommodate even

         17  normal traffic growth.  In addition, reliable

         18  medical studies have reported that increased levels

         19  of asthma, and other respiratory ailments in the

         20  subject areas.

         21                 Nonetheless, recent, and proposed

         22  future developments threaten to remove vast areas of

         23  wetlands and coastal areas.  For example, the

         24  International Air Cargo Facility has removed

         25  valuable parkland, introduced additional traffic,
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          2  and created further environmental damage.  The

          3  proposed Brookville Center shopping mall would

          4  remove even more endangered waterfront and wetlands,

          5  and introduce more traffic, congestion and

          6  pollution. The New York City Economic Development

          7  Corporation has fostered several other projects

          8  including a private bus garage, courier

          9  headquarters, an MTA bus depot, and a police impound

         10  lot. Any combination of such projects would have a

         11  devastating impact on traffic, the environment, air

         12  quality, and noise pollution in this area, and

         13  create additional runoff and pollution not only to

         14  the wetlands, but to the wetlands, but to Jamaica

         15  Bay.

         16                 Queens Community Board 13 resolved to

         17  call upon the Economic Development Corporation, the

         18  New York City Department of City Planning, the

         19  Department of Transportation, all other City

         20  Agencies, and the City Council to immediately cease

         21  any planning, and remove process in the endangered

         22  area of Queens until and unless:

         23                 1. Any and all projects current or in

         24  the future are environmentally sensitive, do no

         25  further damage to the ecology of the wetlands nor
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          2  restrict public access to the wetlands or the

          3  waterfront.

          4                 2.  All projects to be pursued

          5  incorporate a significant amount of open space

          6  between JFK airport, and the residential communities

          7  of Brookville and Rosedale to be reserved.

          8                 3.  All project proposals formally

          9  commit to the protection of the wildlife, and the

         10  unique plant species that abound in Idlewild Park.

         11                 4.  And that the authorities preserve

         12  all open spaces, Idlewild Park Preserve, and the

         13  adjacent wetland areas to be placed under a

         14  conservation easement to protect the significant

         15  features of these natural areas.  Prohibiting all

         16  activity that would alter the land's present natural

         17  condition, allowing only restoration, such as, a

         18  saltwater marsh environmental center.

         19                 Let me conclude by saying that we are

         20  in strong support of the City- owned wetlands, and

         21  waterfront to be brought under the control of the

         22  Parks and Recreation Department.

         23                 MS. BROWN:  My name is Barbara Brown,

         24  I am Chairperson of the Eastern Queens Alliance,

         25  which is the Federation of Civics in Southeast
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          2  Queens, and I am also Chairperson of recently formed

          3  Idlewild Park Preservation Committee, which is an

          4  initiative of Eastern Queens Alliance.

          5                 The Eastern Queens Alliance

          6  recognizes that our green spaces, our parks, and the

          7  wetlands are valuable community resources that

          8  should be preserved, and cultivated.  We recognize

          9  that the intertidal wetlands in Idlewild Park, and

         10  adjacent areas are some of the most valuable types

         11  of wetlands that exist. The wetlands in Idlewild

         12  Park Preserve contain some of the largest expanse of

         13  high quality marsh along the shores of Jamaica Bay.

         14  There has been a lot of talk about, within the last

         15  few years about saving the Bay.  Saving Idlewild

         16  Park Preserve is a critical component in that

         17  process.  All concerned need to realize that.

         18                 Too many, and to, too many Idlewild

         19  Park, and the adjacent open space are barren tracts

         20  of land with invasive exotic plants that seems ripe

         21  for development.  That allowed the rape of Idlewild

         22  Park several years ago.  To put in the International

         23  Air Cargo Center, it allows people to talk about

         24  selling off parcels of land along Rockaway

         25  Boulevard.  This needs to change.  Idlewild Park
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          2  serves, not only ecological functions, but it serves

          3  as a natural buffer between the residential

          4  communities, and the airport.

          5                 New York City Department of Parks and

          6  Recreation had the foresight to designate Idlewild

          7  Park as a Forever Wild Preserve.  They recognize

          8  that it needed to be protected.  We recognize this

          9  too, we also recognize that the City- owned open

         10  space along Rockaway Boulevard also needs to be

         11  protected.

         12                 We are asking that there be no

         13  further intrusions, construction upon, or demapping

         14  of the wetlands, or parkland in Idlewild Park, or on

         15  the wetlands in surrounding public and private

         16  lands.  We are seeking the return to the community

         17  the vital benefits of the intertidal wetlands.

         18                 We are also requesting that City-

         19  owned lands along the South side of Rockaway

         20  Boulevard, on the Northern perimeter of JFK and

         21  Thurston Bay not be sold off by the EDC for

         22  commercial, and\or industrial development.

         23  Presently there are parcels of land that EDC is

         24  looking to sell off.

         25                 Essentially, our goals are many,
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          2  pertaining to the Park, but in terms of this

          3  hearing, our goals are to protect Idlewild Park

          4  Preserve, and the adjacent wetland areas by granting

          5  state wildlife preserve status, and\or placing them

          6  under a conservation easement to protect the

          7  significant features of these natural areas.

          8                 We are seeking the restoration, and

          9  protection of the wetlands in Idlewild Park, and

         10  surrounding areas.

         11                 We are seeking to ensure that the

         12  water quality in the wetlands be unimpaired, and to

         13  improve the air quality in Idlewild Park, and the

         14  surrounding residential areas.

         15                 And finally, it is a ultimate goal of

         16  the Eastern Queens Alliance and Idlewild Park

         17  Preservation Committee to establish a Salt Marsh

         18  Environmental Center there, that could be used for

         19  our children, families, and community at large to

         20  learn about the environment.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Ms. Brown,

         23  thank you, very much for condensing your testimony,

         24  and good luck on your new organization.  Thank you,

         25  and lots of luck with that.  Next.
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          2                 MR. WARMINGTON:  Good afternoon, my

          3  name is Derrick Warmington, and I am a resident of

          4  Rosedale\Springfield Gardens area.

          5                 With the restoration, and the

          6  protection of Idlewild Park, or any of the very

          7  sensitive areas, is of ecological imperative.  This

          8  is so because, of many reasons, some of which my

          9  colleagues have indicated today.

         10                 But, just briefly, these wetlands

         11  provide habitat for wildlife, flood protection,

         12  recreation, and education, and there is the health

         13  concern above all, it is our moral duty to our

         14  offsprings.  While I do not want to repeat a lot of

         15  what was said today by my colleagues, let me briefly

         16  touch on a few of these areas.

         17                 In the area of floodings, we are

         18  experiencing in the Rosedale/Springfield Gardens

         19  area, since the recent encroaching and raping of the

         20  wetlands, flooding is of great concern to the

         21  residents of the community.

         22                 In some cases, it becomes almost

         23  impossible for old women, senior citizens, to use

         24  all the roadways, and children who are coming from

         25  school.
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          2                 It is also important to note that at

          3  the moment the problems we are experiencing from the

          4  combustions from vehicles that are now using the

          5  areas surrounding the airport.  What is alarming, is

          6  the fact that this time there is a plan to further

          7  increasing urban transportation in this area.  There

          8  is a plan to put a new bus depot in the area, two

          9  bus depots in the area.  Then there are warehouses

         10  to be brought into the area.  It must be noted that

         11  there are residents in this area who are suffering

         12  from respiratory diseases.

         13                 We have got to ask ourselves the

         14  question, although it is important for economic

         15  development, what type of legacy do we intend to

         16  leave our offsprings?  Would it be a legacy of

         17  environmental diseases, or we create the balance

         18  whereby a clean and safe environment will grow up

         19  together with economic development.

         20                 Lastly, being a country person, a

         21  country boy from Jamaica, I happened to tour the

         22  wetlands last year, and when you go there it reminds

         23  you of the part of the bible of psalm 23, when David

         24  said, "He leadith me beside the still waters."  That

         25  is how beautiful those wetlands are.  We urge you to
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          2  do what is necessary to protect wetlands wherever

          3  they are found.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  At this point I

          6  just want to recognize, and welcome Council Member

          7  Eric Dilan, thank you, very much.  And for the

          8  purposes of the record, Council Member Dilan to

          9  state his vote for HO 399 Adopt- a- Park.  If he can

         10  state his vote at this time?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Mr. Chairman,

         12  please excuse my tardiness, I had the graduation

         13  circuit in my district this morning.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is going

         15  around.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, and I

         17  vote Aye on intro 399A.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Council Member

         19  Dilan, thank you very much for your vote, and for

         20  being the sponsor of the bill, and just make sure

         21  you sign on to the bill.

         22                 Any other testimony?  Any other

         23  questions for this panel?  Once again, thank you

         24  very much for your time and testimony, today.  Thank

         25  you for being here.
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          2                 Okay, and our last panel, and we are

          3  just going to have to add a chair, because there are

          4  five individuals.  We have Catherine Barrow, John

          5  Kilcullen, Charles Perry, Beryl Thurman, and

          6  Catherine Greene- Manzi.  We will add a chair.

          7                 Thank you all for being here today,

          8  if you would just please, you could go, your left to

          9  right.  If you would just state your name, and give

         10  your testimony please.

         11                 MR. KILCULLEN:  We have the Staten

         12  Island contingency here, we all from Staten Island.

         13                 Good morning, actually good

         14  afternoon, I am John Kilcullen, the acting President

         15  of the North Shore Waterfront Conservancy, and a

         16  member of the Mariner's Marsh Conservancy on Staten

         17  Island.

         18                 The newly formed North Shore

         19  Waterfront Conservancy is a Staten Island based

         20  community environmental advocacy group, promoting

         21  more public waterfront access on the Island's north

         22  and west shores.  While Mariner's Marsh Conservancy

         23  is a stewardship and park advocacy group for

         24  Mariner's Marsh Park in Arlington, I am here to

         25  speak on the need, and the importance of acquiring
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          2  and protecting the number of City- owned salt and

          3  fresh water wetlands on Staten Island, which there

          4  are many.  They are not protected as park land.

          5  Many of these sites are in imminent danger of

          6  destruction due to manufacturing expansion, and/or

          7  City infrastructure projects.  The North Shore

          8  Waterfront Conservancy is concerned about a number

          9  of sites spoken about today, specifically Arlington

         10  Marsh, Bridge Creek, and the Gulfport Marsh just

         11  south of the expressway.

         12                 The attached map shows Arlington

         13  Marsh, which you all, now know, where it is located.

         14    The reason that these sites should be brought

         15  under the protection of the Parks Department, is

         16  important for Staten Island, and the City because,

         17  and except for Four Points, currently Staten

         18  Island/Richmond County leads the City as well as the

         19  State in the number of new building applications.

         20  The North Shore of State Island is feeling this

         21  rapid growth.  The ethnically, and economically

         22  diverse North Shore communities of Port Richmond,

         23  Elm Park, Mariner's Harbor, and Arlington have all

         24  seen a number of new homes built.  Many of these new

         25  residents have moved from other boroughs, such as,
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          2  Queens, Brooklyn, and the Bronx, as well as,

          3  directly from other Latin American  and African

          4  Countries.  The North Shore is rapidly becoming the

          5  City's new melting pot.  This already heavily

          6  populated and urbanized section of the Island has a

          7  limited number of parkland and open space.  The

          8  waterfront access is especially lacking, except for

          9  the established Faber Park in Port Richmond, and the

         10  recently acquired property for the new North Shore

         11  Waterfront Park, these areas have limited waterfront

         12  access without having to travel to the south shore

         13  of the Island.

         14                 Acquisition of these sites would

         15  allow New York City to take the lead in open space

         16  planning in the metro region.  As the City continues

         17  to grow, these sites would provide sorely needed

         18  buffer zones between residential areas, and planned

         19  manufacturing public works.  Therefore avoiding the

         20  potential conflict that exists in other parts of the

         21  City, when sites are too close to new homes.

         22                 Staten Island is truly New York

         23  City's last water frontier, the above properties,

         24  which I mentioned, present the City with the best,

         25  and probably the least expensive opportunity to
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          2  acquire large tracts of waterfront open space for

          3  current, and future New Yorkers.

          4                 The transfer of these City- owned

          5  parks, City- owned sites to Parks along the west and

          6  north shores, would allow for a future Northwest

          7  Greenway trail from Mariner's Marsh to Clay Pits

          8  Park in Travis.  This could be accomplished with low

          9  or no City capital outlay, and due to the ecological

         10  makeup of wetlands there would be minimum yearly

         11  maintenance cost because they maintain themselves.

         12                 On behalf of the North Shore

         13  Waterfront Conservancy, and the Mariner's Marsh

         14  Conservancy, I urge the City Council to act

         15  expediently on acquiring these properties for Parks.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

         18  much for being here today.  Next.

         19                 MS. BARROW:  Thank you, good

         20  afternoon, I am Catherine Barrow from Mariners Marsh

         21  Conservancy.  I will be very brief, and very local,

         22  advocating that City Council, and the Parks

         23  Department transfer Arlington Marsh from EDC to

         24  Parks.

         25                 Arlington is one of the functioning,
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          2  intact salt marsh, and when you combine it with the

          3  North Shore Mariner's Marsh Park Preserve, you have

          4  got one of the most unique habitats in New York

          5  City.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. KERRY:  Here we go, can you hear

          8  me all right?            I am Charles Kerry, a Board

          9  Member of Protector of Pine Oak Woods, Staten

         10  Islands largest land conservation organization.  We

         11  are just a grassroots organization of ordinary

         12  individuals, bus drivers, teachers, lawyers, I guess

         13  we have some doctors in there.  We have been

         14  supported in the past by many politicians, sometimes

         15  we do have some contentious problems, that is what

         16  democracy is about, that is what I believe.

         17  Democracy is dialog, and I really appreciate this

         18  opportunity to come here today.

         19                 Protectors was formed 30 years ago,

         20  and we lobbied for the creation of Clay Pit Pond

         21  State Park on Staten Island, and since then, I think

         22  we have been instrumental in development in the, of

         23  many State, City, and Federal Parks.  Also, the

         24  Bluebelt, we advocated for, and they have been a

         25  great benefit to protect natural areas, natural
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          2  drainage areas, and has actually saved the City

          3  millions of dollars.  To bad we did not know this

          4  50- years ago, we might have had a whole different

          5  City today.

          6                 The Bluebelt also have afforded an

          7  opportunity for our children, for education.  I have

          8  been an educator in New York City, and elementary

          9  school for 33- years, recently retired.  We had

         10  National Wildlife Federation, actually came in, and

         11  certified a schoolyard habitat in one of the

         12  Bluebelts for us.

         13                 The other day in the local paper, The

         14  Staten Island Advance, they had a picture of a

         15  kindergarten group going out with binoculars, in

         16  Eipes (phonetic) Pond, on Staten Island.

         17                 Now many of these areas, 30 years

         18  ago, probably just would have been filled in, as we

         19  all know about the Staten Island Fresh Kills Land

         20  Fill, recently closed, that was a wetland, that was

         21  just dumped on.  Because 30- or- 40 years ago, we

         22  did not have any realization that these areas were

         23  worth anything.  I certainly hoped we have changed

         24  today, all the areas that were mentioned, of course,

         25  I think have a real value.  I think we are beginning
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          2  to realize that, and in the future, 20- years from

          3  now, looking back, I hope we do the right thing to

          4  save many of these areas.

          5                 In particular, I would like to talk

          6  about Northern Seaview, which a 50- acre on Staten

          7  Island, City- owned, that is really not a wetland,

          8  but it is the headwaters of Richmond Creek. It is a

          9  beautiful 100- year old forest upland hardwood

         10  forest, and plus has a serpentine barrens.

         11                 Now, I believe the City- owned land

         12  belongs to the people of New York City, and it

         13  should not just be considered just an economic term,

         14  something we can sell off, and make some money on,

         15  possibly.  Many times these lands are almost given

         16  away, and I would like to see these lands conserved,

         17  and turned over to the people so that everyone can

         18  utilize them in New York City.

         19                 You talked about how can we get this

         20  message out to, now if you have known in the news,

         21  Sex in the City is going off the air, so I have a

         22  proposal for a new program called Wet and Wild in

         23  New York.  So, if anyone would like to be on it, I

         24  will be the casting call right after this meeting.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  This would be on
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          2  fox?

          3                 MR. KERRY:  Well, I am going to do

          4  this on community TV to begin with, then we will

          5  work up from there.  But, seriously, I think we have

          6  another, we have Cable TV, we have New York One, we

          7  do have a lot of ways to educate people, and this is

          8  what we have to do.  I have been on New York One a

          9  number of times, and I have produced my own shows

         10  for Cable TV.  We have these venues, the way to get

         11  the message out to people.  In fact, Protectors has

         12  gotten the grant recently from the New York City

         13  Environmental Fund to produce programs, and one of

         14  them we are doing is on restoration. Some of the

         15  work we have done working in the City Parks, State

         16  Parks, and Federal Parks doing restoration work, and

         17  planting thousands of trees.  If we can get the

         18  grassroots people involved, I think, and volunteers,

         19  we have a tremendous asset here in this City.  One

         20  that would not necessarily cost us a lot, so the

         21  first step is Wet and Wild in New York.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MS. THURMAN:  Hi, my name is Beryl

         24  Thurman, I am with the North Shore Waterfront

         25  Conservancy, I am the secretary, and I am a resident
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          2  of Port Richmond.

          3                 I am by far, the closest person, I

          4  guess, next to Arlington Marsh.  I, very much, am

          5  adamant that Arlington Marsh should not be touched.

          6                 You, all, have to give me at note of

          7  excuse because my employer is wondering where I am

          8  right now.

          9                 I had asked my employer if I could

         10  come in late to work, so that I could attend this

         11  meeting, I am here for Arlington Marsh.  Arlington

         12  Marsh belongs to the people of Staten Island, and to

         13  narrow it down further, Arlington Marsh belongs to

         14  the people of the North Shore.  Arlington Marsh

         15  belongs to me, because by definition, I am the City

         16  of New York, we all are.  Arlington Marsh is unique,

         17  and nothing man made will ever be able to match it

         18  or replace it.

         19                 Prior to six years ago, I have to

         20  admit that I took some things for granted.  I mean

         21  you just assume that just because some things are

         22  there, they will remain there.  But then, by

         23  actually becoming involved with my community, I have

         24  started asking questions, and sometimes those

         25  responses to those questions are quite shocking.
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          2  For a very long time, I trusted that everyone that

          3  had whatever job it was, that they were supposed to

          4  be doing, actually knew more, and understood more

          5  then I did, then we all did.  I think that we all

          6  are finding out that this is not the case.

          7                 One of my more recent questions

          8  involves the events following September 11, 2001.

          9  It seemed to me that I now live in a world gone mad.

         10    We now have people who want to bury generators in

         11  the middle of parks in low- income communities.

         12  Further alienating people that already feel

         13  disenfranchised from society. Things that we thought

         14  were safe from being tampered with, like wetlands,

         15  are now just as much as being in danger of being

         16  developed as any other property.

         17                 And our waterfront by any other

         18  civilized standards, would be looked at as a

         19  disgrace visually or environmentally, still remains

         20  an issue.  The fact of the matter is we have played,

         21  and slept while our natural resources have been

         22  dwindling away.  And now we have to start acting

         23  like responsible adults, and do whatever is needed

         24  to save what is remaining.  In the case of Arlington

         25  Marsh that means turning it over, entirely,

                                                            106

          1  PARKS AND RECREATION AND WATERFRONTS

          2  including the part that is owned by New York City

          3  Department of Transportation, to New York City

          4  Parks.  It is essential to our well being, for now,

          5  and for future generations, that we make sure that

          6  Arlington Marsh will be preserved for all time.  We

          7  need Arlington Marsh like we need air to breathe.

          8                 Save all of Arlington Marsh, and in

          9  doing so you will have helped to save Staten Island

         10  and the City of New York.

         11                 Thank you.  I have got to go, bye.

         12                 MS. GREENE- MANZI:  Good afternoon or

         13  is it still morning?  I am Catherine Greene- Manzi,

         14  President of the Coalition for the South Beach Pond

         15  Park Preserve, and also, Friends of Ocean Breeze

         16  Park.  Normally, I would have my oars with me, but

         17  since it is not really raining too hard, I am

         18  without them.

         19                 I would like to tell you that the

         20  Northern section of the South Beach wetlands

         21  received nominations, through the Harbor Estuary

         22  Program, as one of the highest on the site for

         23  acquisition and restoration.

         24                 In 2001, Peter Blanchard, Trust for

         25  Public Land, introduced this area to June Cleaver
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          2  from Parks and Recreation. After studying this area

          3  with Commissioner Polo,(phonetic) and Commissioner

          4  Benepe, they realized that this area that I am

          5  speaking about, basically worked as one large sponge

          6  for the low lying communities in these parcels.

          7  Basically, this particular area is flood- prone, I

          8  would say three quarters of the year most of these

          9  homes are without basements.  The cars are

         10  problems, the first floor of these homes are

         11  problems.  I live in the center of this area, we are

         12  the last three remaining homes, most of the homes

         13  were wiped out in the '70's, and most recent in '92.

         14    In '99, there was approximately 65- acres, it is a

         15  little under 50, although the whole South Beach

         16  wetlands totals out 175.  One hundred and ten of the

         17  acres was transferred over from the State Dormitory

         18  Site in 2001 to Staten Island Parks and Recreation,

         19  which is great.  The remaining areas are not

         20  protected, privately- owned parcels, there are two

         21  City- owned parcels in the Northern section, and

         22  five City owned parcels in the Ocean Breeze area.

         23  Both are not protected under Parks.

         24                 The good news is that for the past

         25  30- years, Oakwood, South Beach, and Midland Beach,
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          2  which is the Mid- Island/ East Shore of Staten

          3  Island, has been waiting a long time for a Bluebelt

          4  to happen.  Finally, land acquisition has happened,

          5  and it has begun for Midland.

          6                 At present, South Beach and Oakwood

          7  are undergoing their Bluebelt studies.  The Army

          8  Corp of Engineers, from Tottenville to Wadsworth are

          9  conducting their shoreline erosion studies.

         10                 My concern here, is that, Senator

         11  Markee, State 3427, a legislation bill, same as the

         12  assembly bill, 7409, was submitted and basically

         13  now, we are waiting for Governor Pataki to sign this

         14  bill.  This bill is for a one year moratorium, to

         15  stop building in any seven, any eight, any nine, and

         16  any ten, which is South Beach, Midland Beach, and

         17  Oakwood Beach.  This one year moratorium would stop

         18  building to allow the Bluebelt Plan to move

         19  smoothly, and quickly, without any interruptions.

         20                 I would just like to say to the

         21  Council, although all these wonderful things are

         22  happening now, and it should have happened a long

         23  time ago, our flooding is increasing.  We need more

         24  land acquisition, and we need State and City

         25  agencies to further take the lead on acquiring
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          2  additional funds to do so.  Because, at present the

          3  DEC are issuing permits like it is a gold rush, and

          4  they are carbon copying applications of approving

          5  these permits. It is like they are doing it

          6  blindfolded.  This is a wetlands one, it is supposed

          7  to receive the highest class of protection, and

          8  right next door to me, a builder is, basically,

          9  submitting a revised plan for the third time, and he

         10  has been refused the first two, block 3413, lot 29,

         11  if you dig six inches into the ground, water

         12  actually pumps up from the ground.  And, yet, I

         13  guess, because he feels, he has the funds to do so,

         14  like the other developers, that they can build homes

         15  on stilts, or take away some of the wetlands, not

         16  adjacent wetlands, the "wetlands" and by taking it

         17  away they are giving back by enhancing it with

         18  vegetating planning, gabion walls, and retention

         19  ponds.  I would like to say this, it use to be the

         20  Buffer concerns that were our concerns, that has

         21  long passed,  they are building in the wetlands, and

         22  they have to stop.  We need land acquisition, and we

         23  need protection.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, thank you
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          2  very much, well done.  Staten Island is well

          3  represented today, and there is a certain amount to

          4  say about strength in numbers.  The fact that you

          5  are all active in speaking on behalf of the Borough,

          6  and taking the other boroughs, I am sure have their

          7  own groups as well.  It is important.  It is

          8  important, and we have said it many times today,

          9  about getting the issue out there, getting it known,

         10  getting it to the public, and you are doing so, and

         11  I commend you all for it, because obviously you do

         12  it on your own time, for the most part. So I

         13  appreciate that, and again, this is an issue that

         14  we, raised the issue today, but obviously from today

         15  on, we need to work on it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Well, I guess

         17  I would like to close by, again thanking you Chair

         18  Addabbo, and thanking also, you, the panel, for

         19  coming forward and helping us to build the record

         20  that we need to press the case, and I think it is

         21  appropriate that Staten Island was the climax of the

         22  hearing, here, because Fresh Kills, kind of

         23  symbolizes a time when there was absolutely no

         24  thought at all given to the impact of government on

         25  the wetlands, and the shore areas.  My hope is that
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          2  Arlington Marsh will show how times have changed,

          3  and that this is now, the City has a more

          4  enlightened understanding of our obligation, not

          5  just to the future, not just to the next generation,

          6  but to the New Yorkers of today, we are here to use

          7  it just the same.

          8                 I want to thank you again, very much

          9  for your participation.

         10                 MS GREENE- MANZI:  Can I just say one

         11  thing?  I would like to invite a personal invitation

         12  on a rainy day to come visit us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I will have to

         14  dust off my canoe, I guess.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I am hoping that

         16  this is the last rainy day for a year or so, but

         17  thank you, Chair Addabbo, again.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Councilman

         19  Yassky, to you and your Committee, thank you, very

         20  much.  This Joint Committee Hearing between the

         21  Parks and Recreation Committee, and The Waterfronts

         22  Committee is hereby adjourned.  Have a good weekend

         23  everyone.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 12:30 p.m.)
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